Summary of Contents

Volume 1

Chapter 1. Introduction

Chapter 2-S. Alberta Chapter 2. Alberta

Chapter 3-S. British Columbia

Volume 2

Chapter 3. British Columbia

Chapter 4-S. Manitoba Chapter 4. Manitoba

Chapter 5-S. New Brunswick
Chapter 5. New Brunswick

Chapter 6. Newfoundland and Labrador

Chapter 7-S. Nova Scotia Chapter 7. Nova Scotia

Volume 3

Chapter 8-S. Ontario

Chapter 8. Ontario

Chapter 9-S. Prince Edward Island Chapter 9. Prince Edward Island

Chapter 10. Quebec

Appendix 10A. Annex I

Chapter 11-S. Saskatchewan

Chapter 11. Saskatchewan

Volume 4

Appendices

Appendix A. Valuation Principles of Family Law

- Appendix B. Tax Principles of Family Law
- Appendix C. Matrimonial Property Division Quantums

Volume 5

Appendices (Continued)

- Appendix D. Proof of Facts
- Appendix E. Forms and Precedents
- Appendix F. International Materials
- Appendix G. Selected Readings

Appendix H. Appendix of Statutes

- Appendix H1. Alberta Family Property Act
- Appendix H2. Family Property Act Family Property Regulation
 - Alberta Regulation 13/99
- Appendix H3. Alberta Forms
- Appendix H4. British Columbia Family Relations Act
- Appendix H5. British Columbia Division of Pensions Regulation
- Appendix H6. British Columbia Family Law Act (Excerpts)
- Appendix H7. Manitoba Family Property Act
- Appendix H8. New Brunswick Marital Property Act
- Appendix H9. Newfoundland and Labrador Family Law Act
- Appendix H10. Nova Scotia Matrimonial Property Act
- Appendix H11. Ontario Family Law Act
- Appendix H12. Ontario Designation of Matrimonial Home—Forms
- Appendix H13. Prince Edward Island Family Law Act
- Appendix H14. Civil Code of Quebec (Excerpts)
- Appendix H15. Saskatchewan Family Property Act
- Appendix SLL. Selected Legal Literature
- Appendix TC. Table of Concordance
- Appendix WP. Words & Phrases

Table of Added Cases

Table of Cases

Index

Table of Contents

Volume 1

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION

I. RECENT CASE SUMMARIES

- A. MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY IN THE COMMON LAW
- § 1:1 Special Property Rules—Gifts Between Spouses
- § 1:2 Development of the Resulting and Constructive Trust in Family Law—Resulting Trusts
- § 1:3 —Rebutting the Presumptions of Advancement and Resulting
 Trust
- § 1:4 —The Benefit/Contribution
 - B. HOMESTEAD LEGISLATION IN THE FOUR WESTERN PROVINCES
- § 1:5 Wrongful Dispositions: Remedies Respecting Dispositions—No Subsequent Disposition—*Bona Fide* Purchasers for Value

II. MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY IN THE COMMON LAW

- A. RECENT LEGISLATION AND THE CONTINUED RELEVANCE OF COMMON LAW AND EQUITABLE REMEDIES
- § 1:6 Generally
 - B. LEGISLATIVE APPROACHES TO PROPERTY RIGHTS FOR UNMARRIED COUPLES
 - 1. Introduction
- § 1:7 The Social Context
- § 1:8 The Legal Context
- § 1:9 The SCC Decision in Walsh v. Bona
 - 2. The Current Situation
- § 1:10 Jurisdictions Preserving Family Property Rules for Married Couples Only—Division/Sharing of Property
- § 1:11 —Possession of the Family Residence
- § 1:12 —Contractual Arrangements
- § 1:13 Jurisdictions with Statutory Provisions for Adopting Family Property Rules by Contract

- § 1:14 Jurisdictions with Registered Domestic Partnerships and Civil Unions
- § 1:15 Jurisdictions where Family Property Rules Cover Unmarried Couples
 - 3. Conclusion
- § 1:16 Generally

C. CONSTITUTIONAL PROBLEMS; THE ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS

- § 1:17 Constitutional Problems
- § 1:18 The Order of Proceedings

D. HISTORY OF MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY

- 1. Common Law
- § 1:19 Generally
 - 2. Traditional Rules of Co-ownership
- § 1:20 Introduction
- § 1:21 Tenancy by the Entirety
- § 1:22 Joint Tenancy
- § 1:23 Tenancy in Common

3. The Influence of Equity

- § 1:24 Conveyance to the Wife Alone: Presumption of Advancement
- § 1:25 Title in the Name of the Husband Alone—Married Women's Property Act Applications
- § 1:26 —Direct Contributions; Express Agreements; Implied and Resulting Trusts
- § 1:27 —Implied, Resulting and Constructive Trusts—Introduction and Theoretical Issues
- § 1:28 —The Emergence of the Remedial Constructive Trust and its Necessary Components

E. FRAUDULENT CONVEYANCES

§ 1:29 Generally

F. SPECIAL PROPERTY RULES

- § 1:30 Bank Accounts
- § 1:31 Gifts to Spouses
- § 1:32 Gifts between Spouses

G. DEVELOPMENT OF THE RESULTING AND CONSTRUCTIVE TRUST IN FAMILY LAW

- § 1:33 Introduction
- § 1:34 Trust Classification

| TABLE OF | CONTENTS |
|------------------|---|
| § 1:35 § 1:36 | Resulting Trusts Rebutting the Presumptions of Advancement and Resulting |
| 6 1.07 | Trust |
| § 1:37 § 1:38 | Effect of Illegal/Wrongful Intentions The Constructive Trust |
| § 1.36 § 1:39 | The Case Law |
| § 1:40 | The Benefit/Contribution |
| § 1:41 | Corresponding Deprivation |
| § 1:42 | No Juridical Right to Retain the Benefit |
| § 1:43 | The Nature of the Remedy |
| § 1:44 | When Should the Court Impose a Constructive Trust |
| H. | PROPERTY RIGHTS OF UNMARRIED COUPLES IN CANADA: UNJUST ENRICHMENT AND ITS REMEDIES |
| | 1. Introduction; Restitution: Liability and Remedy |
| § 1:45 | Introduction |
| § 1:46 § 1:47 | Restitution: Liability—the Principle of Unjust Enrichment Restitution: Remedy—the Place of the Constructive Trust |
| | 2. The Application of Unjust Enrichment to Family Relationships |
| | a. Introduction; The Leading and Governing Authority in This Area of Law; The <i>Ratio</i> Decidendi of Peter v. Beblow |
| § 1:48 | Introduction |
| § 1:49 | The Leading and Governing Authority in this Area of Law |
| § 1:50 | The Ratio Decidendi of Peter v. Beblow |
| | b. Liability |
| § 1:51 | Unjust Enrichment—The Elements of Liability, and the Absence of any Presumption |
| § 1:52 | Direct and Indirect Contribution |
| § 1:53 | Period of Cohabitation |
| | c. Remedy |
| § 1:54 | The Remedies for Unjust Enrichment |
| § 1:55 | Quantifying the Contribution |

- § 1:56 Clarification as to the Remedy Being Awarded
- § 1:57 The Limits of the Constructive Trust Order
- § 1:58 The Status of Unjust Enrichment and its Corresponding Remedies in Light of *Kerr v. Baranow*
 - 3. Unjust Enrichment and Cohabitation in Quebec
- § 1:59 Generally

III. OCCUPATIONAL RIGHTS IN THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

- § 1:60 Introduction
- © 2022 Thomson Reuters, Rel. 4, 9/2022

- § 1:61 Third Party Rights
- § 1:62 Conveyance to Both Spouses
- § 1:63 Homestead Legislation

IV. HOMESTEAD LEGISLATION IN THE FOUR WESTERN PROVINCES

A. INTRODUCTION

§ 1:64 Generally

B. HISTORY AND PURPOSES

1. Introduction; English Dower

- § 1:65 Introduction
- § 1:66 The English Dower Inheritance
- § 1:67 Effects of the Repeal of English Dower

2. The Evolution of the Homestead Legislation

- § 1:68 Introduction
- § 1:69 Exemptions—Alberta
- § 1:70 —Saskatchewan
- § 1:71 —Manitoba
- § 1:72 —British Columbia
- § 1:73 Homestead Statutes—Alberta
- § 1:74 —Saskatchewan
- § 1:75 —Manitoba
- § 1:76 —British Columbia

C. BASIC CONCEPTS, TERMS, AND RULES

- § 1:77 Relationship of Homestead Legislation to Other Statutes
- § 1:78 Courts of Competent Jurisdiction
- § 1:79 Basic Concepts
- § 1:80 —Persons Entitled to Homestead Rights
- § 1:81 —"Homestead"
- § 1:82 —"Disposition"
- § 1:83 —Registration and Homestead Rights Protection

D. DISPOSITIONS AND CONSENT

1. Introduction

§ 1:84 Generally

2. Circumstances in which Consent is Not Required

- § 1:85 Introduction
- § 1:86 Homestead Legislation Inapplicable
- § 1:87 Legislated Exemptions
- § 1:88 Consent Disposed with by Court Order
- § 1:89 Release of Rights

Table of Contents

| \$ 1:90 \$ 1:91 \$ 1:92 \$ 1:93 \$ 1:94 \$ 1:95 \$ 1:96 \$ 1:97 \$ 1:98 \$ 1:99 | —Alberta —Saskatchewan —Manitoba —British Columbia 3. Compliance: "Consent" Introduction Spouses as Partial Interest Holders Standard Consent Requirements Imperfect Compliance Consent to Prospective Transactions Consent by Estoppel |
|--|---|
| E. | WRONGFUL DISPOSITIONS: REMEDIES RESPECTING DISPOSITIONS |
| \$ 1:100 \$ 1:101 \$ 1:102 \$ 1:103 \$ 1:104 \$ 1:105 | Introduction Disposition by Owner Spouse —Bona Fide Purchaser for Value Without Notice —Knowledge, Fraud, Volunteers —Registration by Non-Owner Spouse Subsequent Dispositions |
| F. | ACTIONS FOR COMPENSATION |
| \$ 1:106 \$ 1:107 \$ 1:108 \$ 1:109 \$ 1:110 \$ 1:111 \$ 1:112 \$ 1:113 \$ 1:114 | —Quantum —Survival of the Action —Limitation Period |
| G. | OFFENCES |
| § 1:115 | Generally |
| H. \$ 1:116 \$ 1:117 \$ 1:118 \$ 1:119 \$ 1:120 \$ 1:121 | LIFE ESTATES Life Estate in Homestead —Vesting of Life Estate —Subordination of Interests Under Will or Intestacy —Multiple Homesteads: Election —Loss of Life Estate Life Estate in Personal Property |

V. THE CONFLICT OF LAWS AND MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY DISPUTES IN CANADA

§ 1:122 Introduction

| | MITHINIONIE I NOI BINI I ZIW IN CINNE |
|---------|--|
| § 1:123 | The Matrimonial Property Legislation in Canada |
| § 1:124 | The Conflict of Law Process |
| § 1:125 | Facts Into a Legal Issue |
| § 1:126 | Jurisdiction |
| § 1:127 | —In Personam Jurisdiction |
| § 1:128 | ——Service |
| § 1:129 | ——Submission |
| § 1:130 | — Forum Conveniens, Lis Alibi Pendens, Etc. |
| § 1:131 | —Jurisdiction over the Cause of Action |
| § 1:132 | Choice of Law |
| § 1:133 | —Where There Is a Statutory Choice of Law Rule |
| § 1:134 | —Where There Is No Statutory Choice of Law Rule |
| § 1:135 | The Effect of Marriage Contracts or Settlements |
| § 1:136 | Succession |
| § 1:137 | Case Law |
| § 1:138 | Conclusion |
| | HE MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY ACTS AND ONVEYANCING CONSEQUENCES Generally |
| 8 1.139 | Generally |
| | THIRD PARTY RIGHTS AND MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY LEGISLATION |
| § 1:140 | Introduction |
| § 1:141 | The Nature of the Matrimonial Property Act Rights and When They Arise |
| § 1:142 | Fraudulent Preferences and the Bankruptcy Act |
| § 1:143 | Rights Independent of the Matrimonial Property Act |
| § 1:144 | Special Provisions Relating to the Home |
| | JOBS, PROFESSIONAL DEGREES, LICENCES AND |
| | RIGHTS TO PRACTISE |
| § 1:145 | Introduction |
| § 1:146 | What is Property? |
| § 1:147 | Characterization of Related Assets—Pensions and Related Job Benefits |
| § 1:148 | —Right to an Income Stream |
| § 1:149 | —Practices and Partnerships |
| § 1:150 | Suggested Analysis |

Compensatory Support: Relief Against Unjust Enrichment

§ 1:151

§ 1:152

§ 1:153

§ 1:154 § 1:155

§ 1:156

The Authors
The Cases

Valuation Conclusion

—Canadian Cases

CHAPTER 2-S. ALBERTA

I. BACKGROUND [RESERVED]

§ 2-S:1 Generally [Reserved]

II. JURISDICTION

| § 2-S:2 | Courts |
|----------|---|
| § 2-S:3 | Marriage Impediments [Reserved] |
| § 2-S:4 | Who may Apply |
| § 2-S:5 | Residency Requirements [Reserved] |
| § 2-S:6 | Conditions Precedent [Reserved] |
| § 2-S:7 | Limitation Periods |
| § 2-S:8 | Summary and Comment on Sections 5 & 6 [Reserved] |
| § 2-S:9 | Date of Separation |
| § 2-S:10 | After Death—Sections 11 to 16—The Rights of the Surviving |
| | Spouse |
| § 2-S:11 | After Death—Sections 11 to 16—The Rights of the Deceased |
| | Spouse's Estate [Reserved] |

III. PRACTICE

| § 2-S:12 | Commencement of Action |
|----------|---|
| § 2-S:13 | Parties |
| § 2-S:14 | Pleadings |
| § 2-S:15 | Discovery |
| § 2-S:16 | Rules of Evidence |
| § 2-S:17 | Procedural Fairness |
| § 2-S:18 | Disclosure—Section 31 |
| § 2-S:19 | Summary Judgment |
| § 2-S:20 | Interim Orders |
| § 2-S:21 | Appeals |
| § 2-S:22 | Relationship between Property and Support |
| § 2-S:23 | Costs |
| § 2-S:24 | Effect of Bankruptcy |
| § 2-S:25 | Consolidation of Actions |
| § 2-S:26 | Expert Evidence |
| § 2-S:27 | Re-opening of Proceedings |
| § 2-S:28 | Self-represented Parties |
| | |

IV. PROPERTY

A. GENERAL; DEFINITION

- $\S 2-S:29$ General
- § 2-S:30 Definition—Section 7(1)

B. DATE OF DISTRIBUTION OR VALUATION DATE; VALUATION ISSUES

§ 2-S:31 Date of Distribution or Valuation Date

§ 2-S:32 Valuation Issues

C. TYPES OF PROPERTY

| 1. | Exem | ot. | \mathbf{Prop} | perty | —S. | 7(2) |) |
|----|------|-----|-----------------|-----------|----------|------|---|
| | | 90 | | P C + U., | \sim • | • \- | , |

- § 2-S:33 Introduction [Reserved]
- § 2-S:34 Inheritance or Gift
- § 2-S:35 Property Prior to Marriage
- § 2-S:36 General
- § 2-S:37 Tort Award
- § 2-S:38 An Insurance Policy
- § 2-S:39 Miscellaneous Property
- § 2-S:40 Other Exempt Property
- § 2-S:41 Increase in Value after Separation
- § 2-S:42 Property Acquired After Separation

D. DISTRIBUTABLE—SECTION 7(3); PROPERTY ACQUIRED AFTER A DIVORCE JUDGMENT

- § 2-S:43 Distributable—Section 7(3)
- § 2-S:44 Property Acquired After a Divorce Judgment

E. DIVISIBLE—SECTION 7(4)

- § 2-S:45 Introduction
- § 2-S:46 Division of Pensions on Marriage Breakdown—Private Pension Plans
- § 2-S:47 Division of Pensions on Marriage Breakdown—Types of Plans [Reserved]
- § 2-S:48 Division of Pensions on Marriage Breakdown—The Trust [Reserved]
- § 2-S:49 Division of Pensions on Marriage Breakdown—Division of Pension at Source [Reserved]
- § 2-S:50 Division of Pensions on Marriage Breakdown—Transfer of a Portion of the Corpus of the Pension [Reserved]
- § 2-S:51 Division of Pensions on Marriage Breakdown—Valuation and Accounting [Reserved]
- § 2-S:52 —Canada Pension Plan
- § 2-S:53 —Registered Retirement Plans
- § 2-S:54 Intellectual Property: Royalties and Patents [Reserved]
- § 2-S:55 Debts
- § 2-S:56 Payments After Marriage Relating to Matters Prior to Marriage [Reserved]
- § 2-S:57 Employment Separation Allowances
- § 2-S:58 University Degrees and Professional Licences
- § 2-S:59 Other Property

V. JUDICIAL DISCRETION—THE FACTORS IN SECTION 8

- § 2-S:60 The Philosophy
- § 2-S:61 The Factors—Section 8

VI. POWERS OF COURT; FRAUDULENT TRANSFERS

- § 2-S:62 Powers of Court—S. 9
- § 2-S:63 Fraudulent Transfers

VII. PROTECTION OF ASSETS—S. 35

- A. INJUNCTIONS—SS. 33 & 34 & INJUNCTIONS AT COMMON LAW
- § 2-S:64 Personal Property—S. 33
- § 2-S:65 Real Property—S. 35
- § 2-S:66 Chattels—Section 25 [Reserved]

VIII. MATRIMONIAL HOME POSSESSION; DOWER CONSENTS; THIRD PARTY INTERESTS IN DISTRIBUTABLE PROPERTY

- § 2-S:67 Matrimonial Home Possession
- § 2-S:68 Dower Consents
- § 2-S:69 Third Party Interests in Distributable Property

IX. EVIDENTIARY PRESUMPTIONS; EQUITABLE REMEDIES

- § 2-S:70 Evidentiary Presumptions—S. 36
- § 2-S:71 Equitable Remedies

X. COHABITATION AND PROPERTY

- § 2-S:72 Introduction
- § 2-S:73 Constructive and Resulting Trusts
- § 2-S:74 Joint Family Venture

XI. CONTRACTING OUT OF THE ACT; ENFORCEMENT OF ORDER AGAINST BANKRUPT SPOUSE; THIRD PARTY CLAIMS IN MATRIMONIAL CASES; BANKRUPTCY

- § 2-S:75 Contracting Out of the Act—Sections 37 & 38
- § 2-S:76 Enforcement of Order Against Bankrupt Spouse
- § 2-S:77 Third Party Claims in Matrimonial Cases
- § 2-S:78 Bankruptcy

CHAPTER 2. ALBERTA

I. BACKGROUND

§ 2:1 Generally

II. JURISDICTION

- § 2:2 The Court
- © 2022 Thomson Reuters, Rel. 4, 9/2022

- § 2:3 Marriage Impediments
- § 2:4 Who May Apply
- § 2:5 Residency Requirements
- § 2:6 Conditions Precedent
- § 2:7 Limitation Periods
- § 2:8 Summary and Comment on Sections 5 & 6
- § 2:9 Date of Separation [Reserved]
- § 2:10 After Death—Sections 11 to 16—The Rights of the Surviving Spouse
- § 2:11 —The Rights of the Deceased Spouse's Estate

III. PRACTICE

- § 2:12 Commencement of Action—Section 4
- § 2:13 Parties
- § 2:14 The Pleadings
- § 2:15 Discovery [Reserved]
- § 2:16 Rules of Evidence [Reserved]
- § 2:17 Procedural Fairness [Reserved]
- § 2:18 Disclosure—Section 31
- § 2:19 Summary Judgment
- § 2:20 Interim Orders [Reserved]
- § 2:21 Appeals
- § 2:22 Relationship between Property and Support [Reserved]
- § 2:23 Costs
- § 2:24 Effect of Bankruptcy [Reserved]
- § 2:25 Consolidation of Actions [Reserved]
- § 2:26 Expert Evidence [Reserved]
- § 2:27 Re-opening of Proceedings [Reserved]
- § 2:28 Self-represented Parties [Reserved]

IV. PROPERTY

A. GENERAL; DEFINITION

- § 2:29 General
- § 2:30 Definition—Section 7(1)

B. DATE OF DISTRIBUTION OR VALUATION DATE; VALUATION ISSUES

- § 2:31 Date of Distribution or Valuation Date
- § 2:32 Valuation Issues [Reserved]

C. TYPES OF PROPERTY

1. Exempt Property—Section 7(2)

- § 2:33 Introduction
- § 2:34 Inheritance or Gift
- § 2:35 Property Prior to Marriage
- § 2:36 General [Reserved]
- § 2:37 Tort Award

| TABLE OF | CONTENTS |
|---|--|
| \$ 2:38 \$ 2:39 \$ 2:40 \$ 2:41 \$ 2:42 | An Insurance Policy Miscellaneous Property [Reserved] Other Exempt Property [Reserved] Increase in Value After Separation [Reserved] Property Acquired After Separation [Reserved] |
| D. | DISTRIBUTABLE—SECTION 7(3); PROPERTY ACQUIRED AFTER A DIVORCE JUDGMENT |
| § 2:43 § 2:44 | Distributable—Section 7(3) Property Acquired After a Divorce Judgment |
| E. | DIVISIBLE—SECTION 7(4) |
| § 2:45 § 2:46 | Introduction Division of Pensions on Marriage Breakdown—Private Pension Plans |
| | —Types of Plans —The Trust |
| | —Division of Pension at Source |
| o . | —Transfer of a Portion of the Corpus of the Pension |
| § 2:51 | —Valuation and Accounting |
| § 2:52 | —Canada Pension Plan |
| § 2:53 | —Registered Retirement Plans |
| § 2:54 | Intellectual Property: Royalties and Patents |
| § 2:55 | Debts |
| § 2:56 | Payments After Marriage Relating to Matters Prior to Marriage |
| § 2:57 | Employment Separation Allowances |
| § 2:58 | University Degrees and Professional Licences |
| § 2:59 | Other Property |
| V. JU | UDICIAL DISCRETION—THE FACTORS IN SECTION |
| § 2:60 | The Philosophy |
| § 2:61 | The Factors—Section 8 |
| VI. P | OWERS OF COURT; FRAUDULENT TRANSFERS |
| _ | Powers of the Court—Section 9 |
| § 2:63 | Fraudulent Transfers—Section 10 |
| VII. | PROTECTION OF ASSETS—SECTION 35 |
| A. | INJUNCTIONS—SECTIONS 33 & 34 & INJUNCTIONS AT COMMON LAW |
| § 2:64 | Personal Property—Section 33 |
| § 2:65 | Real Property—Section 35 |
| § 2:66 | Chattels—Section 25 |

VIII. MATRIMONIAL HOME POSSESSION; DOWER CONSENTS; THIRD PARTY INTERESTS IN DISTRIBUTABLE PROPERTY

- § 2:67 Matrimonial Home Possession
- § 2:68 Dower Consents [Reserved]
- § 2:69 Third Party Interests in Distributable Property [Reserved]

IX. EVIDENTIARY PRESUMPTIONS; EQUITABLE REMEDIES

- § 2:70 Evidentiary Presumptions—Section 36
- § 2:71 Equitable Remedies

X. COHABITATION AND PROPERTY

- § 2:72 Introduction
- § 2:73 Constructive and Resulting Trusts [Reserved]
- § 2:74 Joint Family Venture [Reserved]

XI. CONTRACTING OUT OF THE ACT; ENFORCEMENT OF ORDER AGAINST BANKRUPT SPOUSE; THIRD PARTY CLAIMS IN MATRIMONIAL CASES; BANKRUPTCY

- § 2:75 Contracting Out of the Act—Sections 37 & 38
- § 2:76 Enforcement of Order Against Bankrupt Spouse [Reserved]
- § 2:77 Third Party Claims in Matrimonial Cases [Reserved]
- § 2:78 Bankruptcy [Reserved]

CHAPTER 3-S. BRITISH COLUMBIA

I. HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT [RESERVED]

- § 3-S:1 Reception of English Law into British Columbia [Reserved]
- § 3-S:2 The Married Women's Property Acts [Reserved]
- § 3-S:3 The Family Relations Act, 1972—Statutory Background [Reserved]
- § 3-S:4 The Family Relations Act, 1972—Statutory Change: Judicial Discretion Under S. 8 [Reserved]
- § 3-S:5 The Berger Report [Reserved]

II. THE FAMILY RELATIONS ACT

- A. INTRODUCTION; WHEN DOES THE INTEREST OF THE SPOUSE ARISE; THE NATURE OF THE INTEREST
- § 3-S:6 Introduction
- § 3-S:7 When Does the Interest of the Spouse Arise
- § 3-S:8 The Nature of the Interest

B. FAMILY ASSETS

§ 3-S:9 General

Table of Contents

| \$ 3-S:10 \$ 3-S:11 \$ 3-S:12 \$ 3-S:13 \$ 3-S:14 \$ 3-S:15 \$ 3-S:16 \$ 3-S:17 | Family Purpose Ordinary Use Corporation or Trusts: S. 58(3)(a) Assets in the Name of Third Parties: S. 58(3)(b) Money in Savings Account "Ordinarily Used": S. 58(3)(c) Right of Spouse to Pension: S. 58(3)(d) Venture: S. 58(3)(e) |
|--|---|
| C. | SECTION 59 |
| \$ 3-S:18 \$ 3-S:19 \$ 3-S:20 \$ 3-S:21 \$ 3-S:22 \$ 3-S:23 \$ 3-S:24 \$ 3-S:25 | Introduction Contribution to Acquisition of Property or Operation of Business Savings Through Effective Management [Reserved] Nexus—The Relationship Between Savings and Assets [Reserved] Contributions Made Prior to Marriage Contribution to Assets Acquired After Separation Non-Domestic Indirect Contributions Direct Contributions Through Work Effort |
| | <u> </u> |
| D. | CONTRIBUTION TO FAMILY ASSETS AFTER SEPARATION; ONUS OF PROOF |
| § 3-S:26 § 3-S:27 | Contributions to Family Assets After Separation Onus of Proof [Reserved] |
| E. | SETTING ASIDE MARRIAGE AND SEPARATION AGREEMENTS; SECTION 65 AND 68; COMMON LAW AGREEMENTS |
| § 3-S:28 | Setting Aside Marriage and Separation Agreements— General Comments |
| § 3-S:29 § 3-S:30 | Section 65 and Section 68 Common Law Agreements |
| F. | COHABITATION AND PROPERTY |
| § 3-S:31 § 3-S:32 § 3-S:33 | Constructive and Resulting Trusts Joint Family Venture Presumption of Advancement |
| G. | SECTION 65 |
| \$ 3-S:34 \$ 3-S:35 \$ 3-S:36 \$ 3-S:37 \$ 3-S:38 \$ 3-S:39 \$ 3-S:40 | General Conduct Duration of the Marriage: S. 65(1)(a) Duration of Separation: S. 65(1)(b) Date Property Acquired: S. 65(1)(c) Inheritance or Gift: S. 65(1)(d) Needs of a Spouse: S. 65(1)(e) |

| | THE PROPERTY DAY IN CHARLE |
|---|--|
| § 3-S:41 § 3-S:42 | |
| H. | VALUATION DATE AND OTHER VALUATION ISSUES |
| § 3-S:43 | Generally |
| I. | SECTION 66 |
| § 3-S:44 § 3-S:45 § 3-S:46 § 3-S:47 § 3-S:48 § 3-S:50 § 3-S:51 | |
| J. | BANKRUPTCY; INTERIM ORDERS; PRACTICE AND JURISDICTION ISSUES |
| § 3-S:52 § 3-S:53 § 3-S:54 § 3-S:55 | Interim Orders Practice and Jurisdiction Issues |
| K. | ORDERS FOR PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY/ RESTRAINING ORDERS; VARYING PROPERTY ORDERS; RESTRAINING ORDERS |
| § 3-S:56 § 3-S:57 § 3-S:58 | Orders for Preservation of Property/Restraining Orders Varying Property Orders Restraining Orders |
| | RESERVATION OF PROPERTY ORDERS; OHABITATION AND PROPERTY RIGHTS |
| | Preservation of Property Orders Cohabitation and Property Rights —Joint Family Venture |
| | ASES DECIDED UNDER THE NEW FAMILY LAW CT (B.C.) |
| \$ 3-S:62 \$ 3-S:63 \$ 3-S:64 \$ 3-S:65 \$ 3-S:66 \$ 3-S:67 \$ 3-S:68 | Valuation and Valuation Date Issues |
| § 3-S:68 | Interim Distribution of Property |

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| § 3-S:69 | Application of Trust Principles and Unjust Enrichment |
|----------|---|
| § 3-S:70 | Joint Family Venture |
| § 3-S:71 | Family Residence |
| § 3-S:72 | Interest in Property Owned by Third Party |
| § 3-S:73 | Compensation Order |
| § 3-S:74 | Restraining or Preservation Orders |
| § 3-S:75 | Partition and Sale |
| § 3-S:76 | Third Party Purchasers of Property |
| § 3-S:77 | Division Pursuant to Agreement |
| § 3-S:78 | Unequal Division (Reapportionment) |
| § 3-S:79 | Choice of Law Rules |
| § 3-S:80 | Pensions |
| § 3-S:81 | Practice and Procedure |
| § 3-S:82 | Costs |
| § 3-S:83 | Bankruptcy Considerations |
| § 3-S:84 | Tax Considerations |
| § 3-S:85 | Division on Death of Spouse |

Volume 2

CHAPTER 3. BRITISH COLUMBIA

I. HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT

| § 3:1 | Reception of English Law into British Columbia |
|-------|---|
| § 3:2 | The Married Women's Property Acts |
| § 3:3 | The Family Relations Act, 1972—Statutory Background |
| § 3:4 | —Statutory Change: Judicial Discretion under S. 8 |
| § 3:5 | The Berger Report |

II. THE FAMILY RELATIONS ACT

- A. INTRODUCTION; WHEN DOES THE INTEREST OF THE SPOUSE ARISE; THE NATURE OF THE INTEREST
- § 3:6 Introduction
- § 3:7 When Does the Interest of the Spouse Arise?
- § 3:8 The Nature of the Interest

B. FAMILY ASSETS

| General |
|--|
| Family |
| Family Purpose |
| Ordinary Use |
| Corporations or Trusts—Section $58(3)(a)$ |
| Assets in the Name of Third Parties—Section $58(3)(b)$ |
| Money in Account "Ordinarily Used"—Section $58(3)(c)$ |
| |

| | MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY LAW IN CANAD |
|---|--|
| § 3:16 § 3:17 | Right of Spouse to Pension—Section $58(3)(d)$ Venture—Section $58(3)(e)$ |
| C. | SECTION 59 |
| § 3:18 § 3:19 | Introduction Contribution to Acquisition of Property or Operation of the Business |
| § 3:20 § 3:21 § 3:22 | Savings Through Effective Management Nexus—The Relationship Between Savings and Assets Contributions Made Prior to Marriage |
| § 3:23 § 3:24 § 3:25 | Contribution to Assets Acquired After Separation Non-domestic Indirect Contributions Direct Contribution Through Work Effort |
| D. | CONTRIBUTION TO FAMILY ASSETS AFTER SEPARATION; ONUS OF PROOF |
| § 3:26 § 3:27 | Contribution to Family Assets After Separation Onus of Proof |
| E. | SETTING ASIDE MARRIAGE AND SEPARATION AGREEMENTS; SECTION 65 AND 68; COMMON LAW AGREEMENTS |
| § 3:28 | Setting Aside Marriage and Separation Agreements—General Comments |
| § 3:29 § 3:30 | Section 65 and Section 68 Common Law Agreements |
| F. | COHABITATION AND PROPERTY [RESERVED] |
| § 3:31 § 3:32 § 3:33 | Constructive and Resulting Trusts [Reserved] Joint Family Venture [Reserved] Presumption of Advancement [Reserved] |
| G. | SECTION 65 |
| \$ 3:34 \$ 3:35 \$ 3:36 \$ 3:37 \$ 3:38 \$ 3:39 \$ 3:40 \$ 3:41 \$ 3:42 | General Conduct Duration of Marriage—Section $65(1)(a)$ Duration of Separation—Section $65(1)(b)$ Date Property Acquired—Section $65(1)(c)$ Inheritance or Gift—Section $65(1)(d)$ Needs of a Spouse—Section $65(1)(e)$ Other Circumstances—Section $65(1)(f)$ Debts |
| Н. | VALUATION DATE AND OTHER VALUATION ISSUES |

§ 3:43 Generally

I. SECTION 66

§ 3:44 General

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- § 3:45 Ownership or Right of Possession—Section 66(2)(a)
- § 3:46 Transfer of Property—Section 66(2)(b)
- Compensation—Section 66(2)(c)§ 3:47
- § 3:48 Partition or Sale—Section 66(2)(d)
- § 3:49 Transfer to Child—Section 66(2)(e)
- Security—Section 66(2)(f)§ 3:50
- § 3:51 Severance of Joint Tenancy—Section 66(2)(g)

J. BANKRUPTCY: INTERIM ORDERS: PRACTICE AND JURISDICTION ISSUES

- § 3:52 Bankruptcy
- § 3:53 Interim Orders
- § 3:54 Practice and Jurisdiction Issues [Reserved]
- § 3:55 Practice and Jurisdiction Issues—Costs [Reserved]

K. ORDERS FOR PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY/ RESTRAINING ORDERS: VARYING PROPERTY ORDERS: RESTRAINING ORDERS [RESERVED]

- Orders for Preservation of Property/Restraining Orders [Reserved] § 3:56
- § 3:57 Varying Property Orders [Reserved]
- Restraining Orders [Reserved] § 3:58

III. PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY ORDERS: COHABITATION AND PROPERTY RIGHTS [RESERVED]

- § 3:59 Preservation of Property Orders [Reserved]
- § 3:60 Cohabitation and Property Rights [Reserved]
- Cohabitation and Property Rights—Joint Family Venture [Reserved] § 3:61

CASES DECIDED UNDER THE NEW FAMILY LAW IV. ACT (B.C.) [RESERVED]

- Application of Act [Reserved]
- § 3:62 § 3:63 Family Property [Reserved]
- Excluded Property [Reserved] § 3:64
- Presumption of Advancement [Reserved] § 3:65
- Family Debts [Reserved] § 3:66
- § 3:67 Valuation and Valuation Date Issues [Reserved]
- § 3:68 Interim Distribution of Property [Reserved]
- § 3:69 Application of Trust Principles and Unjust Enrichment [Reserved]
- § 3:70 Joint Family Venture [Reserved]
- § 3:71 Family Residence [Reserved]
- Interest in Property Owned by Third Party [Reserved] § 3:72
- Compensation Order [Reserved] § 3:73
- Restraining or Preservation Orders [Reserved] § 3:74
- § 3:75 Partition and Sale [Reserved]
- § 3:76 Third Party Purchasers of Property [Reserved]
- § 3:77 Division Pursuant to Agreement [Reserved]
- Unequal Division (Reapportionment) [Reserved] § 3:78
- Choice of Law Rules [Reserved]
- § 3:79 § 3:80 Pensions [Reserved]

| § 3:82 § 3:83 § 3:84 | Practice and Procedure [Reserved] Costs [Reserved] Bankruptcy Considerations [Reserved] Tax Considerations [Reserved] Division on Death of Spouse [Reserved] |
|--|--|
| CHAP | TER 4-S. MANITOBA |
| I. TH | E COMMON LAW POSITION |
| § 4-S:1 § 4-S:2 § 4-S:3 § 4-S:4 | Introduction [Reserved] The Presumption of Advancement [Reserved] Unjust Enrichment and the Constructive Trust Personal Property [Reserved] |
| | IE MOVE TOWARD MARITAL PROPERTY GISLATION [RESERVED] |
| § 4-S:5 | Generally [Reserved] |
| III. T | HE MARITAL PROPERTY ACT |
| A. | INTRODUCTION [RESERVED] |
| § 4-S:6 | Generally [Reserved] |
| В. | TO WHOM THE ACT APPLIES [RESERVED] |
| \$ 4-S:7 \$ 4-S:8 \$ 4-S:9 \$ 4-S:10 \$ 4-S:11 \$ 4-S:12 | Introduction [Reserved] Application to Common-Law Partners [Reserved] Residence Requirement [Reserved] Conflict of Laws [Reserved] Retroactivity [Reserved] Void and Voidable Marriages [Reserved] |
| C. | TO WHAT THE ACT APPLIES [RESERVED] |
| \$ 4-S:13 \$ 4-S:14 \$ 4-S:15 \$ 4-S:16 \$ 4-S:17 \$ 4-S:18 | Introduction [Reserved] Future and Contingent Rights [Reserved] Assets Outside of Manitoba [Reserved] Land on Indian Reserve [Reserved] Assets Acquired Before Marriage—Specific contemplation of marriage [Reserved] Assets Acquired Before Marriage—Tracing [Reserved] |
| D. | ASSETS NOT SUBJECT TO THE ACT |
| \$ 4-S:19 \$ 4-S:20 \$ 4-S:21 \$ 4-S:22 \$ 4-S:23 | Gifts, Trust Benefits and Inheritances Damage Awards for Personal Injury [Reserved] Joint Property Property Excluded by Agreement Making an Excluded Asset Shareable [Reserved] |
| E. | THE DISTINCTION BETWEEN FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL ASSETS [RESERVED] |

 $\$ 4-S:24 General [Reserved]

§ 4-S:25 The Marital Home [Reserved]

F. THE SHARING OF ASSETS: HOW THE SCHEME WORKS

| § 4-S:26 | Introduction [Reserved] |
|----------|--|
| § 4-S:27 | Valuation of Assets—Valuation Date |
| § 4-S:28 | Valuation of Assets—Method of valuation [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:29 | Valuation of Assets—Goodwill and Professional Practices [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:30 | Valuation of Assets—Evidence of value [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:31 | Valuation of Assets—Tax ramifications [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:32 | Valuation of Assets—Cost of Sale [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:33 | Valuation of Assets—Pensions [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:34 | Valuation of Assets—Provincially-regulated pensions [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:35 | Valuation of Assets—Federally-regulated pensions [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:36 | Valuation of Assets—Canada Pension Plan [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:37 | Valuation of Assets—Old Age Pension [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:38 | Valuation of Assets—Old Age Pension—Disability pensions or |
| ~ | insurance [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:39 | Valuation of Assets—Old Age Pension—The effect of pension |
| 0 1 0 10 | division on support [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:40 | Debts and Liabilities |
| § 4-S:41 | Excessive Gifts and Dissipation |
| § 4-S:42 | Use of Assets |
| § 4-S:43 | Effect of Bankruptcy |
| § 4-S:44 | Judicial Discreton to Vary Equal Sharing |
| § 4-S:45 | Procedure—Limitation of actions [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:46 | Procedure—Disclosure of assets [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:47 | Procedure—Interim equalization [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:48 | Procedure—Preservation orders [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:49 | Procedure—Procedure on reference [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:50 | Procedure—Satisfaction of judgments [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:51 | Procedure—Pre-judgment interest [Reserved] |

IV. OCCUPATION RIGHTS IN THE MARITAL HOME

§ 4-S:52 Generally

V. PROPERTY RIGHTS ON DEATH [RESERVED]

| § 4-S:53 | Introduction [Reserved] |
|----------|---|
| § 4-S:54 | The Intestate Succession Act [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:55 | Part IV of The Marital Property Act [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:56 | Part IV of The Marital Property Act—Who May Apply Under Part |
| , | IV [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:57 | Part IV of The Marital Property Act—Shareable Assets [Reserved] |
| | |

VI. THE HOMESTEADS ACT [RESERVED]

| § 4-S:58 | Introduction [Reserved] |
|----------|--|
| § 4-S:59 | Application to Common-Law Spouses [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:60 | Definition of Homestead [Reserved] |
| § 4-S:61 | Consent to Disposition of Homestead [Reserved] |

VII. PARTITION AND SALE: THE LAW OF PROPERTY ACT; PROPERTY RIGHTS OF UNMARRIED COUPLES

- § 4-S:62 Partition and Sale: The Law of Property Act [Reserved]
- § 4-S:63 Property Rights of Unmarried Couples

CHAPTER 4. MANITOBA

I. THE COMMON LAW POSITION

- § 4:1 Introduction
- § 4:2 The Presumption of Advancement
- § 4:3 Unjust Enrichment and the Constructive Trust
- § 4:4 Personal Property

II. THE MOVE TOWARD MARITAL PROPERTY LEGISLATION

§ 4:5 Generally

III. THE MARITAL PROPERTY ACT

A. INTRODUCTION

§ 4:6 Generally

B. TO WHOM THE ACT APPLIES

- § 4:7 Introduction
- § 4:8 Application to Common-Law Partners
- § 4:9 Residence Requirement
- § 4:10 Conflict of Laws
- § 4:11 Retroactivity
- § 4:12 Void and Voidable Marriages

C. TO WHAT THE ACT APPLIES

- § 4:13 Introduction
- § 4:14 Future and Contingent Rights
- § 4:15 Assets Outside of Manitoba
- § 4:16 Land on Indian Reserve
- § 4:17 Assets Acquired Before Marriage—Specific Contemplation of Marriage
- § 4:18 —Tracing

D. ASSETS NOT SUBJECT TO THE ACT

- § 4:19 Gifts, Trust Benefits and Inheritances
- § 4:20 Damage Awards for Personal Injury
- § 4:21 Joint Property
- § 4:22 Property Excluded by Agreement

§ 4:23 Making an Excluded Asset Shareable

E. THE DISTINCTION BETWEEN FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL ASSETS

- § 4:24 General
- § 4:25 The Marital Home

F. THE SHARING OF ASSETS: HOW THE SCHEME WORKS

- § 4:26 Introduction
- § 4:27 Valuation of Assets—Valuation Date
- § 4:28 —Method of Valuation
- § 4:29 —Goodwill and Professional Practices
- § 4:30 —Evidence of Value
- § 4:31 —Tax Ramifications
- § 4:32 —Cost of Sale
- § 4:33 —Pensions
- § 4:34 —Provincially-Regulated Pensions
- § 4:35 —Federally-Regulated Pensions
- § 4:36 —Canada Pension Plan
- § 4:37 —Old Age Pension
- § 4:38 ——Disability Pensions or Insurance
- § 4:39 ——The Effect of Pension Division on Support
- § 4:40 Debts and Liabilities
- § 4:41 Excessive Gifts and Dissipation
- § 4:42 Use of Assets
- § 4:43 Effect of Bankruptcy
- § 4:44 Judicial Discretion to Vary Equal Sharing
- § 4:45 Procedure—Limitation of Actions
- § 4:46 —Disclosure of Assets
- § 4:47 —Interim Equalization
- § 4:48 —Preservation Orders
- § 4:49 —Procedure on Reference
- § 4:50 —Satisfaction of Judgments
- § 4:51 —Pre-judgment Interest

IV. OCCUPATION RIGHTS IN THE MARITAL HOME

§ 4:52 Generally

V. PROPERTY RIGHTS ON DEATH

- § 4:53 Introduction
- § 4:54 The Intestate Succession Act
- § 4:55 Part IV of The Marital Property Act
- § 4:56 —Who May Apply Under Part IV
- § 4:57 —Shareable Assets

VI. THE HOMESTEADS ACT

- § 4:58 Introduction
- © 2022 Thomson Reuters, Rel. 4, 9/2022

| | Matrimonial Property Law in Canada |
|--|--|
| § 4:59 § 4:60 § 4:61 | Application to Common-Law Spouses Definition of Homestead Consent to Disposition of Homestead |
| | PARTITION AND SALE: THE LAW OF PROPERTY ACT; PROPERTY RIGHTS OF UNMARRIED COUPLES |
| § 4:62 § 4:63 | Partition and Sale: <i>The Law of Property Act</i> Property Rights of Unmarried Couples |
| СНА | PTER 5-S. NEW BRUNSWICK |
| I. TI | HE MARITAL PROPERTY ACT |
| \$ 5-S:1 \$ 5-S:2 \$ 5-S:3 \$ 5-S:4 \$ 5-S:5 \$ 5-S:6 \$ 5-S:7 \$ 5-S:8 | of Martial Property Abolition of Dower and Tenancy by the Curtesy [Reserved] The Married Woman's Property Act [Reserved] |
| II. D | DEFINING MARITAL PROPERTY |
| § 5-S:9 § 5-S:10 § 5-S:11 | Property, Other Than Business Assets or Gifts, Acquired During the Marriage [Reserved] |
| § 5-S:12 | 2 —Pay Equity Settlements, Disability Benefits, and Damage Awards |
| § 5-S:13 § 5-S:14 | |
| | ASSETS THAT ARE SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED FROM THE DEFINITION OF MARITAL PROPERTY |
| § 5-S:16 § 5-S:16 | |
| IV. I | DETERMINING QUESTIONS OF OWNERSHIP |
| § 5-S:15 § 5-S:18 § 5-S:19 | 8 Constructive Trust Claims |

V. KEEPING INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL; MARITAL DEBTS; DIVISION OF PROPERTY ON DEATH OF A SPOUSE

- § 5-S:20 Keeping Information Confidential [Reserved]
- § 5-S:21 Marital Debts
- § 5-S:22 Division of Marital Property on Death of Spouse

VI. THE COURT'S DISCRETION IN DIVIDING PROPERTY

- § 5-S:23 Excluding Certain Categories of Property from Division
- § 5-S:24 Dividing Marital Property Unequally (s. 7)
- § 5-S:25 Dividing Non-marital Property (s. 8)

VII. THE MECHANICS OF DIVISION

- § 5-S:26 Problems of Valuation
- § 5-S:27 Interim Suit Money
- § 5-S:28 Possible Orders on an Application for Division of Property

VIII. THE MARITAL HOME AND HOUSEHOLD GOODS

- § 5-S:29 Definitions of Marital Home and Household Goods
- § 5-S:30 Right to Possession of Marital Home and Household Goods and Order for Exclusive Possession
- § 5-S:31 Protection Against Unilateral Disposition of Marital Home and Household Goods
- § 5-S:32 Right to Equal Share of Proceeds of Sale of Marital Home

IX. UNMARRIED COHABITATION—PROPERTY RIGHTS; DOMESTIC CONTRACTS

- § 5-S:33 Unmarried Cohabitation—Property Rights [Reserved]
- § 5-S:34 Domestic Contracts

X. PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE; CONCLUSION

- § 5-S:35 Practice and Procedure [Reserved]
- § 5-S:36 Conclusion

CHAPTER 5. NEW BRUNSWICK

I. THE MARITAL PROPERTY ACT

- § 5:1 Introduction
- § 5:2 Retroactive Application of Marital Property Act
- § 5:3 Conflict of Laws Provisions
- § 5:4 The Presumption of Equality
- § 5:5 Triggering Events and Time Limits for Applying for Division of Marital Property
- § 5:6 Abolition of Dower and Tenancy by the Curtesy

- § 5:7 The Married Woman's Property Act
- § 5:8 Related Legislation

II. DEFINING MARITAL PROPERTY

- § 5:9 Introduction
- § 5:10 Property, Other Than Business Assets and Gifts, Acquired During the Marriage
- § 5:11 —Pensions, Retirement Allowances, Employee Stock Options, Severance Pay
- § 5:12 —Pay Equity Settlements, Disability Benefits, and Damage Awards
- § 5:13 —Proceeds of Life Insurance Policies
- § 5:14 Family Assets

III. ASSETS THAT ARE SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED FROM THE DEFINITION OF MARITAL PROPERTY

- § 5:15 Business Assets
- § 5:16 Gifts and Inheritances to One Spouse Only, and Property Acquired in Exchange for Property Acquired by Gift or Inheritance

IV. DETERMINING QUESTIONS OF OWNERSHIP

- § 5:17 Section 15 Presumptions
- § 5:18 Constructive Trust Claims
- § 5:19 Section 42 Applications

V. KEEPING INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL; MARITAL DEBTS; DIVISION OF PROPERTY ON DEATH OF A SPOUSE

- § 5:20 Keeping Information Confidential
- § 5:21 Marital Debts
- § 5:22 Division of Property on Death of a Spouse

VI. THE COURT'S DISCRETION IN DIVIDING PROPERTY

- § 5:23 Excluding Certain Categories of Marital Property from Division (S. 6)
- § 5:24 Dividing Marital Property Unequally (s. 7)
- § 5:25 Dividing Non-Marital Property (s. 8)

VII. THE MECHANICS OF DIVISION

- § 5:26 Problems of Valuation
- § 5:27 Interim Suit Money
- § 5:28 Possible Orders on an Application for Division of Property

VIII. THE MARITAL HOME AND HOUSEHOLD GOODS

§ 5:29 Definition of Marital Home and Household Goods

- § 5:30 Right to Possession of Marital Home and Household Goods and Orders for Exclusive Possession
- § 5:31 Protection Against Unilateral Disposition of Marital Home and Household Goods
- § 5:32 Right to Equal Share in Proceeds of Sale of Marital Home

IX. UNMARRIED COHABITATION—PROPERTY RIGHTS; DOMESTIC CONTRACTS

- § 5:33 Unmarried Cohabitation—Property Rights [Reserved]
- § 5:34 Domestic Contracts

X. PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE; CONCLUSION

- § 5:35 Practice and Procedure [Reserved]
- § 5:36 Conclusion

CHAPTER 6. NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR

I. RECENT CASE SUMMARIES

A. PART I: THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

- § 6:1 Generally—Overview
- § 6:2 —Ownership
- § 6:3 Possession [Section 15]

B. PART II: MATRIMONIAL ASSETS

- § 6:4 Generally—Particular Matrimonial Assets—Pensions
- § 6:5 Other Than Pensions
- § 6:6 Disposition—Presumption of Equal Division
- § 6:7 Equal and Unequal Division—Governing Factors [Section 22]
- § 6:8 Allegations of Misconduct [Section 23]
- § 6:9 Business Assets—Particular Business Assets
- § 6:10 Presumptions (Gifts; Trusts; Joint Accounts) [Section 31]

II. FAMILY LAW ACT—GENERALLY

A. BACKGROUND: LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: OVERVIEW

- § 6:11 Background
- § 6:12 Legislative History
- § 6:13 Overview [Section 1]

B. PRACTICE

- § 6:14 Generally
- § 6:15 Limitations
- § 6:16 Pleadings—Originating Pleadings
- § 6:17 —Other Pleadings

| | Matrimonial Property Law in Canada |
|--|---|
| § 6:19 § 6:20 § 6:21 § 6:22 § 6:23 | |
| C. | INTERPRETATION: GLOBALLY [SECTION 2(1)] |
| § 6:26 § 6:27 | Overview Interpretations |
| D. | COURTS: GLOBALLY [SECTION 2(2)] |
| § 6:28 § 6:29 | Trials Appeals |
| E. | APPLICATION OF ACT |
| § 6:31 | Persons to Whom the Act Applies Persons to Whom the Act Does Not Apply [Section 2(3)] Interests to Which the Act Does Not Apply [Section 2(4)] Labrador Inuit Land Claims Agreement [Section 2.1] |
| F. | COMPANION PROCEEDINGS [SECTIONS 3(1)-3(2)] |
| § 6:34 § 6:35 | Generally Companion Proceedings Orders |
| G. | ADDITIONAL PROCEDURE AND PRACTICE |
| § 6:36 § 6:37 | Types of Proceedings [Section 3(3)] Treatment of Domestic Contract Provisions [Sections 3(4), (5)] |
| H. | DISPUTE RESOLUTION ALTERNATIVES; PURPOSES OF ACT |
| § 6:38 § 6:39 | Dispute Resolution Alternatives [Section 4] Purposes of Act [Section 5] |
| III. F | PART I: THE MATRIMONIAL HOME |
| A. | GENERALLY |
| § 6:40 § 6:41 § 6:42 § 6:43 | Overview Courts: Part I [Section 6(1)(a)] Property Comprising Matrimonial Home [Sections 6(1)(b), 6(2) to 6(6), 7] Ownership |
| § 6:44 | Designation [Section 9] |

lxvi

B. THE MATRIMONIAL HOME: DISPOSITION

- § 6:45 Overview [Section 10]
- § 6:46 Setting Aside [Sections 11-12]
- § 6:47 Mortgage Sale [Section 13]
- § 6:48 Court Powers [Section 14]

C. POSSESSION, ORDERS AND ALLEGATIONS OF MISCONDUCT

- § 6:49 Possession [Section 15]
- § 6:50 Orders—Interim (Including Preservation and "Freezing" Orders) [Section 16]
- § 6:51 —Registration [Section 17]
- § 6:52 Allegations of Misconduct

D. EFFECT OF AGREEMENTS

- § 6:53 Effect
- § 6:54 Enforcement on Death

IV. PART II: MATRIMONIAL ASSETS

A. GENERALLY

- § 6:55 Overview
- § 6:56 Interpretation: Part II [Section 18(1)]
- § 6:57 Expanded Interpretation [Section 18(2), 18(3)]
- § 6:58 Purpose [Section 19]
- § 6:59 Application [Section 20]
- § 6:60 Particular Matrimonial Assets—Other Than Pensions
- § 6:61 —Pensions
- § 6:62 Tracing, Merging, and Conversion

B. DISPOSITION

- § 6:63 Triggering Events (Including Death) [Section 21(1)]
- § 6:64 Presumption of Equal Division
- § 6:65 Rights to Division [Section 21(2)]
- § 6:66 Time Limitations on Division Applications [Section 21(3)]

C. UNEQUAL DIVISION

- § 6:67 Governing Factors [Section 22]
- § 6:68 Particular Divisions

D. ALLEGATIONS OF MISCONDUCT [SECTION 23]

§ 6:69 Generally

E. DISCOVERY

- § 6:70 Statement of Property [Section 24]
- © 2022 Thomson Reuters, Rel. 4, 9/2022

§ 6:71 Confidentiality [Section 25]

F. VALUE AND VALUATION (INCLUDING DEBTS AND OTHER ADJUSTMENTS)

- § 6:72 Overview
- § 6:73 Particular Orders—Mechanics
- § 6:74 —Adjustments—Debts
- § 6:75 —Adjustments—Occupation Rent
- § 6:76 —Adjustments—Other

G. DIVISION IMPLEMENTATION ORDERS

- § 6:77 Overview (Including Children's Property) [Section 26]
- § 6:78 Particular Orders

H. OWNERSHIP; SALE OF ENCUMBERED ASSETS

- § 6:79 Ownership (Including Constructive Trusts) [Section 27]
- § 6:80 Matrimonial Assets: Sale of Encumbered Assets [Section 28]

I. BUSINESS ASSETS

- § 6:81 Overview [Section 29]
- § 6:82 Particular Business Assets
- § 6:83 Valuation
- § 6:84 Particular Dispositions
- § 6:85 Business Debts

J. INTERIM ORDERS

- § 6:86 Overview (Including Preservation and "Freezing" Orders)
 [Section 30]
- § 6:87 Particular Orders

K. PRESUMPTIONS; CONFLICT OF LAWS

- § 6:88 Presumptions (Gifts; Trusts; Joint Accounts) [Section 31]
- § 6:89 Conflict of Laws [Section 32]

L. EFFECT OF AGREEMENTS

- § 6:90 Effect [Section 33]
- § 6:91 Enforcement on Death [Section 34]

V. PERSONAL PROPERTY SECURITY ACT

§ 6:92 Personal Property Security Act [Section 34.1]

VI. PART III: FAMILY SUPPORT

§ 6:93 Family Support [Sections 35–60]

lxviii

VII. PART IV: DOMESTIC CONTRACTS

A. GENERALLY

- § 6:94 Overview
- § 6:95 Interpretation: Part IV [Section 61]
- § 6:96 Drafting

B. SPECIFIC

- § 6:97 Ante-Nuptial and Marriage [Section 62]
- § 6:98 Cohabitation [Section 63]
- § 6:99 Separation [Section 64]
- § 6:100 Formalities [Section 65(1)]
- § 6:101 Persons Under Disability [Sections 65(2) to (4)]
- § 6:102 Enforcement [Section 65(5)]
- § 6:103 Restrictions on Effect and Validity [Section 66]
- § 6:104 Deemed Additional Parties [Section 67]
- § 6:105 Extra-Provincial Domestic Contracts [Section 68]
- § 6:106 Paternity [Section 69]
- § 6:107 Pre July 1, 1980 Agreements [Section 70]
- § 6:108 Deceased Spouse Status [Section 71]

VIII. PART V: AMENDMENTS TO THE COMMON LAW

- § 6:109 Overview
- § 6:110 Married Persons Legal Personality [Section 72]
- § 6:111 Pledging Credit for Necessities [Section 73]
- § 6:112 Right of Action by Parent or Minor [Section 74]
- § 6:113 Right to Recover for Pre-natal Injuries [Section 75]
- § 6:114 Minor's Domicile [Section 76]
- § 6:115 Parental Liability for Minor's Conduct [Section 77]
- § 6:116 Criminal Conversation [Section 78]
- § 6:117 Enticement and Harbouring [Section 79]
- § 6:118 Restitution of Conjugal Rights [Section 80]

IX. PART VI: GENERAL

A. RESTRAINING HARASSMENT

- § 6:119 Generally [Section 81(1)]
- § 6:120 Overview
- § 6:121 Interim Orders [Section 81(2)]
- § 6:122 Exclusive Possession of Matrimonial Home [Section 81(3), (4)]

B. PROCEDURE

- § 6:123 Trial Division and Unified Family Court
- § 6:124 Provincial Court
- § 6:125 Criminal Code Provisions Applicable
- § 6:126 Extension of Time Limitations

C. INCOME TAX ACT; REGULATIONS; FEES AND FORMS; APPEALS; EXECUTION

- § 6:127 Income Tax Act [Section 84]
- § 6:128 Regulations [Section 85]
- § 6:129 Fees and Forms [Section 86]
- § 6:130 Appeals
- § 6:131 Execution

X. **TABLES**

- § 6:132 Table 1: Table of Legislative History of Sections of Family Law Act to and including Family Law Act, RSNL 1990, c. F-2
- § 6:133 Table 2: Table of Orders Authorized by Family Law Act
- § 6:134 Table 3: Table of Legislation Governing Pensions Division
- § 6:135 Table 4: Methods of Division of "Community" Property Other Than By Judicial Decision

CHAPTER 7-S. NOVA SCOTIA

- § 7-S:1 Background [Reserved]
- § 7-S:2 Basic Scheme of Legislation
- Interpretation [Reserved] § 7-S:3
- § 7-S:4 Scope [Reserved]
- § 7-S:5 Triggering Events
- Death of a Spouse [Reserved] § 7-S:6
- § 7-S:7 Matrimonial Debts
- § 7-S:8 Definitions—Spouse
- -Matrimonial Assets Generally § 7-S:9
- § 7-S:10 -Matrimonial Home
- § 7-S:11 —Possession
- § 7-S:12 Definitions—The Nature of Non-Owning Spouse's Rights [Reserved]
- § 7-S:13 —Occupation Rent
- § 7-S:14 —Bankruptcy
- § 7-S:15 Definitions—Disposal Costs [Reserved]
- —Court Powers in Relation to the Matrimonial Home § 7-S:16
- § 7-S:17 —Occupational Rights Under s. 11(1)
- § 7-S:18 Cohabitation and Property Rights [Reserved]
- § 7-S:19 —Joint Family Venture
- § 7-S:20 —Constructive and Resulting Trusts
- § 7-S:21 Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Office Building [Reserved]
- § 7-S:22 —Pensions
- Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Aeroplan Points [Reserved] § 7-S:23
- § 7-S:24
- Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Aircraft [Reserved]
 Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Bank Accounts— § 7-S:25 Children's [Reserved]
- Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Canada Savings § 7-S:26 Bonds [Reserved]
- § 7-S:27 Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—G.I.C. [Reserved]
- § 7-S:28 Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Life Insurance— C.S.V. [Reserved]

| § 7-S:29 | —Income Tax Rebate |
|----------------------|---|
| § 7-S:30 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—R.R.I.F. [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:30 § 7-S:31 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—UIC Payments Contingent |
| | Deferred—Matrimonial Asset Sales Commissions Contingent |
| | Deferred [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:32 | —RRSPs |
| § 7-S:33 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Yacht [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:34 | —Employment—Benefits—Severance Pay—Vacation Pay |
| § 7-S:35 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Employment—Benefits— |
| Ü | Separation Benefit [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:36 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Employment—Benefits— |
| | Pay Equity [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:37 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Employment—Benefits— |
| | Public Service Awards [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:38 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Building Lot [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:39 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Personal Injury Award— |
| e = G +o | Conversion to Matrimonial Asset [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:40 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Workers Compensation |
| 8 7 C. 41 | Payment [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:41 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Equipment—Tractors, Farm |
| § 7-S:42 | Implements, Bulldozers [Reserved] Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings— |
| 8 1-0.42 | Equipment—Tractor [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:43 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Farm Operation [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:44 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Raw Land [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:45 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Service Award [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:46 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Motor Vehicle—Purchased |
| , | Post-Separation from Savings [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:47 | —Inheritance |
| § 7-S:48 | —Cottage |
| § 7-S:49 | —Business—Part Family Venture |
| § 7-S:50 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Business—Part Family |
| 8 1-0.00 | Venture—Business—Family Component [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:51 | Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Business—Part Family |
| 3 . 0.01 | Venture—Shares in former law firm [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:52 | Exceptions—Disability Pension—Not a Matrimonial Asset |
| § 7-S:53 | Exceptions—Dental Practice—Business Asset [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:54 | Exceptions—Fur Coat—Jewellery [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:55 | Exceptions—Birds—Exotic [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:56 | Exceptions—Gun Collection [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:57 | Exceptions—Hair Styling Business—Milk Quota [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:58 | Exceptions—Veterinary Practice [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:59 | Exceptions—Shares in Restaurant [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:60 | Exceptions—Tools [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:61 | —Inheritance |
| § 7-S:62 | Exceptions—Wedding Ring [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:63 | —Investment Property |
| § 7-S:64 | Exceptions—Proceeds of Shares in Business Reinvested in |
| , , D.OI | Business [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:65 | Exceptions—Insurance Policy Held by Business on Husband's |
| | Life [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:66 | Exceptions—Employment Termination Incentive [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:67 | Exceptions—Trusts [Reserved] |
| § 7-S:68 | —Property Excluded by Agreement |

—Property Used for Business § 7-S:69 § 7-S:70 Date of Distribution § 7-S:71 Judicial Advice—Procedure—Division of Property Normally Precedes Maintenance Determination [Reserved] § 7-S:72 Tax Consequences Procedure § 7-S:73 Jury Trial [Reserved] § 7-S:74 § 7-S:75 Marriage Contracts—Generally § 7-S:76 —Legal Requirements § 7-S:77 —Terms Affecting Children § 7-S:78 Marriage Contracts—Absent—Missing Provision [Reserved] —Setting Aside § 7-S:79 Registration of Orders [Reserved] § 7-S:80 **Unequal Division** § 7-S:81 § 7-S:82 Contribution to Business Asset by Spouse § 7-S:83 Property Out of Jurisdiction (Nova Scotia) [Reserved] Appellate—Standard of Review § 7-S:84 § 7-S:85 Costs § 7-S:86 Valuation § 7-S:87 Constructive and Resulting Trusts

CHAPTER 7. NOVA SCOTIA

§ 7:1 Background § 7:2 Basic Scheme of the Legislation § 7:3 Interpretation Scope § 7:4 **Triggering Events** § 7:5 Death of a Spouse § 7:6 § 7:7 Matrimonial Debts Definitions—Spouse § 7:8 § 7:9 -Matrimonial Assets Generally § 7:10 -Matrimonial Home § 7:11 -Possession § 7:12 —The Nature of Non-Owning Spouse's Rights § 7:13 —Occupational Rent § 7:14 —Bankruptcy —Disposal Costs § 7:15 § 7:16 -Court Powers in Relation to the Matrimonial Home —Occupational Rights Under Section 11(1) § 7:17 § 7:18 Cohabitation and Property Rights [Reserved] Cohabitation and Property Rights—Joint Family Venture [Reserved] § 7:19 § 7:20 Cohabitation and Property Rights—Constructive and Resulting

Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Office Building

Trusts [Reserved]

—Aeroplan Points

—Bank Accounts—Children's

—Canada Savings Bonds

—Pension

—Aircraft

§ 7:21

§ 7:22

§ 7:23

§ 7:24

§ 7:25

§ 7:26

TABLE OF CONTENTS

§ 7:27 —G.I.C. § 7:28 —Life Insurance—C.S.V. § 7:29 -Income Tax Rebate § 7:30 —R.R.I.F. —UIC Payments Contingent Deferred—Matrimonial Asset § 7:31 Sales Commissions Contingent Deferred § 7:32 —RRSPs § 7:33 —Yacht § 7:34 —Employment—Benefits—Severance Pay—Vacation Pay § 7:35 ——Separation Benefit § 7:36 ——Pay Equity § 7:37 — — Public Service Awards § 7:38 —Building Lot § 7:39 —Personal Injury Award—Conversion to Matrimonial Asset § 7:40 —Workers Compensation Payment § 7:41 —Equipment—Tractors, Farm Implements, Bulldozers § 7:42 —Equipment—Tractor § 7:43 —Farm Operation § 7:44 -Raw Land § 7:45 —Service Award § 7:46 -Motor Vehicle-Purchased Post-Separation from Savings § 7:47 —Inheritance § 7:48 -Cottage § 7:49 Matrimonial Assets—Specific Findings—Business—Part Family Venture [Reserved] § 7:50 — —Business—Family Component § 7:51 ——Shares in former law firm § 7:52 Exceptions—Disability Pension—Not Matrimonial Asset § 7:53 —Dental Practice—Business Asset § 7:54 —Fur Coat—Jewellery § 7:55 -Birds-Exotic § 7:56 —Gun Collection § 7:57 —Hair Styling Business—Milk Quota § 7:58 —Veterinary Practice -Shares in Restaurant § 7:59 § 7:60 —Tools § 7:61 —Inheritance § 7:62 —Wedding Ring § 7:63 —Investment Property § 7:64 —Proceeds of Shares in Business Reinvested in Business § 7:65 —Insurance Policy Held by Business on Husband's Life § 7:66 —Employment Termination Incentive § 7:67 —Trusts § 7:68 Exceptions—Property Excluded by Agreement [Reserved] § 7:69 Exceptions—Property Used for Business [Reserved] § 7:70 Date of Division § 7:71 Judicial Advice—Procedure—Division of Property Normally Precedes Maintenance Determination

Tax Consequences

§ 7:72

| § 7:73 | Procedure |
|--------|--|
| § 7:74 | Jury Trial |
| § 7:75 | Marriage Contracts—Generally |
| § 7:76 | —Legal Requirements |
| § 7:77 | —Terms Affecting Children |
| § 7:78 | —Absent—Missing Provision |
| § 7:79 | —Setting Aside |
| § 7:80 | Registration of Orders |
| § 7:81 | Unequal Division |
| § 7:82 | Contribution to Business Asset by Spouse |
| § 7:83 | Property Out of Jurisdiction (Nova Scotia) |
| § 7:84 | Appellate—Standard of Review |
| § 7:85 | Costs |
| § 7:86 | Valuation [Reserved] |

Volume 3

Constructive and Resulting Trusts [Reserved]

CHAPTER 8-S. ONTARIO

Introduction [Reserved]

PRE-FAMILY LAW ACT MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY LAW

| § 8-S:2 § 8-S:3 | Common Law [Reserved] The Matrimonial Property Legislation in Ontario: Historic Overview [Reserved] |
|--------------------|---|
| II. T | HE FAMILY LAW ACT |
| A. | INTRODUCTION; THE OPERATION OF PART I |
| § 8-S:4 § 8-S:5 | |
| В. | THE APPLICATION OF PART I |
| § 8-S:6 | Introduction [Reserved] |
| § 8-S:7 | Who May Apply for Equalization of Net Family Property? |
| § 8-S:8 | Spouse |
| § 8-S:9 | Marriage Breakdown: The Triggering Events |
| § 8-S:10 | Extending the Limitation Period to Commence Proceedings |
| § 8-S:11 | Jurisdiction |
| § 8-S:12 | Capacity of Spouse to Carry out Litigation |

C. THE NATURE OF THE CLAIM; RELATION OF EQUALIZATION TO SUPPORT

§ 8-S:14 The Nature of the Claim [Reserved]

Application as Abuse of Process

§ 8-S:13

§ 7:87

§ 8-S:1

§ 8-S:15 Relation of Equalization to Support

III. CALCULATION OF THE EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT

| | | TTAT | T T A F | n | D 4 D D |
|----|-----|-------------|---------|------|-----------------------|
| Α. | THE | VAI | ıIJA′ | ľľON | DATE |

| § 8-S:16 Introductio | n [Reserved] |
|----------------------|--------------|
|----------------------|--------------|

- § 8-S:17 Permanent Separation
- § 8-S:18 Divorce and Nullity
- § 8-S:19 Death
- § 8-S:20 Where No Powers of Appointment/Control Exist in Either Spouse

B. PROPERTY

1. Shareable Interests

- § 8-S:21 Introduction [Reserved]
- § 8-S:22 Resulting Trusts
- § 8-S:23 Constructive Trusts [Reserved]

2. What Assets or "Things" should not be Classed as Property

- § 8-S:24 Introduction [Reserved]
- § 8-S:25 Debts
- § 8-S:26 Jobs [Reserved]
- § 8-S:27 Professional Degrees and Licences to Practise [Reserved]
- § 8-S:28 Financial Arrangements with Aging Parents [Reserved]
- § 8-S:29 Disability Benefits
- § 8-S:30 Severance Pay
- § 8-S:31 Bank Account Held in Trust for Child
- § 8-S:32 Assets Held in Trust
- § 8-S:33 Property Held in Trust for Another
- § 8-S:34 Grant Money
- § 8-S:35 Property Acquired After Separation
- § 8-S:36 Property Outside Jurisdiction
- § 8-S:37 Children's RESPs
- § 8-S:38 Rental Income from Matrimonial Home
- § 8-S:39 Bonuses
- § 8-S:40 Generally
- § 8-S:41 "At Risk" Performance Pay (Discretionary)
- § 8-S:42 Stock Options
- § 8-S:43 Structured Settlements/Annuities

3. What "Things" Should be Classed as Property

- § 8-S:44 Business and Professional Practices
- § 8-S:45 Pensions
- § 8-S:46 Double Dipping/Double Accounting for Pension Benefits [Reserved]
- § 8-S:47 Retirement Benefits, Sick Leave and Employment/ Termination Benefits

| \$ 8-S:48 \$ 8-S:49 \$ 8-S:50 \$ 8-S:51 \$ 8-S:52 \$ 8-S:53 \$ 8-S:54 \$ 8-S:55 \$ 8-S:55 \$ 8-S:56 \$ 8-S:57 \$ 8-S:58 \$ 8-S:59 | RRSPs Income Streams/Trusts Employee Savings Accounts [Reserved] Rights of Action and Damage Awards Inheritance Rights [Reserved] Miscellaneous Power or Control Over Property Contractual Rights Beneficial Interests Options to Purchase Bank Accounts and Investment Accounts Powers of Appointment/Control |
|---|--|
| C. | VALUATION |
| \$ 8-S:60 \$ 8-S:61 \$ 8-S:62 \$ 8-S:63 \$ 8-S:64 \$ 8-S:65 \$ 8-S:66 \$ 8-S:67 \$ 8-S:68 \$ 8-S:69 \$ 8-S:70 \$ 8-S:71 | Introduction [Reserved] Generally Onus of Proof Interim Disbursements Notional Tax and Disposition Costs Pensions Small Business and Professional Practices After Acquired Knowledge [Reserved] Stock Options Debts Trusts Stock Options |
| D. | EXCLUSIONS |
| | 1. Introduction; Onus of Proof |
| § 8-S:72 § 8-S:73 | Introduction [Reserved] Onus of Proof |
| | 2. Excluded Property: The Classes of Section 4(2) |
| § 8-S:74 § 8-S:75 § 8-S:76 | Introduction [Reserved] Gifts or Inheritances from Third Parties Income from Gifts and Inheritances Acquired After Marriage if the Donor/Testator Expressly Stated that it is to be Excluded in Calculating the Recipient Spouse's Nfp |
| § 8-S:77 | Damages |
| § 8-S:78 § 8-S:79 | Proceeds or Right to Proceeds of Life Insurance Traced Property |
| § 8-S:80 | Property Excluded Under a Domestic Contract |
| E. | DEDUCTIONS IN CALCULATING SPOUSAL NET FAMILY PROPERTY |
| § 8-S:81 § 8-S:82 | Introduction [Reserved] Onus of Proof |

| § 8-S:83 § 8-S:84 § 8-S:85 | Debts and Liabilities Notional Tax and Disposition Costs Net Value on the Date of Marriage of Property Brought Into the Marriage |
|----------------------------------|---|
| F. | CALCULATION OF DIFFERENCE IN SPOUSAL NET FAMILY PROPERTIES; DETERMINING THE "EQUALIZATION OBLIGATION": REAPPORTIONING THE DIFFERENCE |
| § 8-S:86 § 8-S:87 | Calculation of Difference in Spousal Net Family Properties Determining the "Equalization Obligation": Reapportioning the Difference |
| G. | UNEQUAL DIVISION: REAPPORTIONMENT OF THE EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT |
| | 1. Generally; Sections 5(6)(a) to 5(6)(g) |
| § 8-S:88 § 8-S:89 | Generally Section 5(6)(a): A Spouse's Failure to Disclose Debts or Liabilities on the Date of Marriage |
| § 8-S:90 | Section 5(6)(b): The Fact that Debts or Liabilities Claimed in Reduction of Spouse's NFP Incurred Recklessly or in Bad Faith |
| § 8-S:91 | Section 5(6)(c): Part of Spouse's NFP that Consists of Gifts Made by the Other Spouse |
| § 8-S:92 | Section 5(6)(d): Spouse's Intentional or Reckless Depletion of his or her NFP |
| § 8-S:93 | Section 5(6)(e): Equalization Would be Disproportionately Large Given the Short Duration of Marriage |
| § 8-S:94 | Section 5(6)(f): One Spouse Incurring Disproportionate Debts or Liabilities for Family Purposes |
| § 8-S:95 | Section 5(6)(g): A Written Agreement Between Spouses that is Not a Domestic Contract |
| | 2. Section 5(6)(h): Any Other Circumstances Relating to Acquisition, Disposition, Preservation, Maintenance, or Improvement of Property |
| § 8-S:96 | Introduction [Reserved] |
| § 8-S:97 | General |
| § 8-S:98 | Need for Future Economic Independence [Reserved] |
| § 8-S:99 § 8-S:100 | Post-Separation Changes in Value [Reserved] Disparity in Contributions |
| § 8-S:101 | Conduct |
| § 8-S:102 | Post-Separation Changes in Value |
| § 8-S:103 | Post-Separation Factors Generally |
| § 8-S:104 | Need for Future Economic Independence |
| § 8-S:105 | Domestic Contract |
| | 3. Summary |
| § 8-S:106 | Generally [Reserved] |

§ 8-S:107 Effect of Bankruptcy

IV. REALIZATION OF THE EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT

| § 8-S:108 | Introduction |
|-----------|--|
| § 8-S:109 | Money Judgment |
| § 8-S:110 | Security |
| § 8-S:111 | Deferred/Instalment Payments—Generally |
| § 8-S:112 | Deferred/Instalment Payments—Section 11 [Reserved] |
| § 8-S:113 | —Conditions |
| § 8-S:114 | Property Orders: If and When Division |
| § 8-S:115 | Sale of Property |
| § 8-S:116 | Transfer or Vesting of Property in Other Spouse |
| § 8-S:117 | Enforcement |
| § 8-S:118 | Interest on Judgment |
| § 8-S:119 | Variation of Realization Order |
| § 8-S:120 | Interim Orders |
| § 8-S:121 | Transfer of Property |
| § 8-S:122 | No Equalization Order or Waiver |

V. OWNERSHIP DETERMINATION

| § 8-S:123 | Section 10 |
|-----------|--|
| § 8-S:124 | Constructive and Resulting Trusts |
| § 8-S:125 | Preservation Orders |
| § 8-S:126 | Variation of Security [Reserved] |
| § 8-S:127 | Presumption of Resulting Trust and Joint Ownership |
| § 8-S:128 | Presumption of Resulting Trust and Joint Ownership—Conflict of laws [Reserved] |
| § 8-S:129 | Piercing the Corporate Veil |
| § 8-S:130 | Common Law Relationships—Joint Family Venture |
| § 8-S:131 | —Jurisdiction |
| § 8-S:132 | —Resulting and Constructive Trusts |
| § 8-S:133 | Severance of Joint Tenancy |
| § 8-S:134 | Bankruptcy Situations |
| | |

VI. PARTITION AND SALE

| Generally |
|--|
| Pre-trial Sale of Co-owned Matrimonial Property |
| Right to Sale |
| Defences to Pre-trial Sale |
| Possession |
| Preservation Order |
| No Rights Over Asset (Trust Law) [Reserved] |
| —Right to Transfer/Purchase of Other's Interest in Final Property Resolution |
| Sale Upon Final Resolution of Dispute—Section 9 of the Family Law Act |
| |

- § 8-S:144 Partition Act
- § 8-S:145 Appeals [Reserved]

VII. TRANSITION PROVISIONS: PART I APPLICATION [RESERVED]

§ 8-S:146 Generally [Reserved]

VIII. FAMILY LAW ACT PART II: THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

A. INTRODUCTION; JURISDICTION TO MAKE ORDER

- § 8-S:147 Introduction [Reserved]
- § 8-S:148 Jurisdiction to Make Order

B. THE MATRIMONIAL HOME DEFINED

- § 8-S:149 Introduction [Reserved]
- § 8-S:150 Property
- § 8-S:151 In Which a Spouse Has an Interest
- § 8-S:152 Ordinarily Occupied as Family Residence
- § 8-S:153 Time of Residence User
- § 8-S:154 More than One Matrimonial Home
- § 8-S:155 Multiple User
- § 8-S:156 Designation of Matrimonial Home

C. SPECIAL PART II RIGHTS OVER THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

1. Possession

- § 8-S:157 Possession of the Home
- § 8-S:158 Possession of Contents of Home
- § 8-S:159 Exclusive Possession

2. Occupation Rent; Ancillary Possession Orders

- § 8-S:160 Occupation Rent
- § 8-S:161 Ancillary Possession Orders

3. Exclusive Possession Orders: The Criteria

- § 8-S:162 Generally
- § 8-S:163 Best Interests of the Children
- § 8-S:164 Effect of Property and Support Orders
- § 8-S:165 The Financial Position of Both Spouses
- § 8-S:166 Suitable Alternative Accommodation
- § 8-S:167 Violence
- § 8-S:168 Agreements Between Parties

4. Variation of Possession Orders

§ 8-S:169 Generally

5. Disposition or Encumbrance of the Matrimonial Home

| § 8-S:170 | Introduction [Reserved] |
|-----------|--|
| § 8-S:171 | Release of Part II Rights [Reserved] |
| § 8-S:172 | Court Order |
| § 8-S:173 | Designation by Both Spouses |
| § 8-S:174 | Dispensing with Spousal Consent |
| § 8-S:175 | Effect of Non-compliance |
| § 8-S:176 | Setting Aside Offending Transactions |
| § 8-S:177 | Severance of Joint Tenancy |
| § 8-S:178 | Costs of Preparing and Staging Home for Sale |
| § 8-S:179 | Jurisdiction |

6. Other Matters

| o office madelia |
|---|
| Spousal Rights vs. Rights of Third Parties |
| Severing Joint Tenancy of Spouses |
| Right to Redemption and Notice [Reserved] |
| Rights of Third Party Creditors |
| Severance of Joint Tenancy |
| Reimbursement of Other Spouse |
| Fraudulent Conveyances under the Fraudulent |
| Conveyances Act (New) |
| |

IX. DOMESTIC CONTRACTS

A. GENERALLY; JURISDICTION

§ 8-S:187 Generally § 8-S:188 Jurisdiction (New)

B. VALIDITY OF CONTRACT

| § 8-S:189 | Introduction |
|-----------|---|
| § 8-S:190 | Formal Validity |
| § 8-S:191 | Essential Validity |
| § 8-S:192 | Compulsion |
| § 8-S:193 | Non-disclosure |
| § 8-S:194 | Lack of Understanding |
| § 8-S:195 | Independent Legal Advice |
| § 8-S:196 | Parties Not "Ad Idem" (New) |
| § 8-S:197 | Mistake (New) |
| § 8-S:198 | Transfers at Undervalue Within Five Years of Bankruptcy (New) |
| § 8-S:199 | Misrepresentation (New) |
| § 8-S:200 | Rectification (New) |
| | |

C. OTHER MATTERS

| 8 8-2:201 | Interpretation |
|-----------|--------------------------|
| § 8-S:202 | Effect of Reconciliation |

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| § 8-S:203 | Foreign and Pre-FLA Contracts |
|-----------|--|
| § 8-S:204 | Enforcement |
| § 8-S:205 | —Failure to Meet Objectives of Divorce Act |
| § 8-S:206 | Drafts and Settlement Proposals |
| § 8-S:207 | Settlements by Counsel |
| § 8-S:208 | Arbitration Agreements |
| § 8-S:209 | Variation |
| § 8-S:210 | Parties' Conduct Inconsistent with Intention to Separate |

X. MEDIATION/ARBITRATION AGREEMENTS; PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE; ARBITRATION AWARDS

| § 8-S:211 | Mediation/Arbitration Agreements |
|-----------|--|
| § 8-S:212 | Practice and Procedure—Commencing and Processing |
| | Equalization and Ownership Proceedings |
| § 8-S:213 | Arbitration Awards—Generally |

XI. COSTS

| § 8-S:214 | Introduction |
|-----------|----------------------------------|
| § 8-S:215 | Interim Disbursements |
| § 8-S:216 | Interest: Pre- and Post-judgment |
| § 8-S:217 | Security for Costs |

CHAPTER 8. ONTARIO

I. PRE-FAMILY LAW ACT MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY LAW

| § 8:1 | Introduction |
|-------|---|
| § 8:2 | Common Law |
| § 8:3 | The Matrimonial Property Legislation in Ontario: Historic |
| | Overview |

II. THE FAMILY LAW ACT

A. INTRODUCTION; THE OPERATION OF PART I

| § 8:4 | Introduction |
|-------|-------------------------|
| § 8:5 | The Operation of Part I |

B. THE APPLICATION OF PART I

| § 8:6 | Introduction |
|--------|---|
| § 8:7 | Who May Apply for Equalization of Net Family Property? |
| § 8:8 | Spouse |
| § 8:9 | Marriage Breakdown: the Triggering Events |
| § 8:10 | Extending the Limitation Period to Commence Proceedings |
| § 8:11 | Jurisdiction |
| § 8:12 | Capacity of Spouse to Carry out Litigation [Reserved] |

§ 8:13 Application as Abuse of Process [Reserved]

C. THE NATURE OF THE CLAIM; RELATION OF EQUALIZATION TO SUPPORT

- § 8:14 The Nature of the Claim
- § 8:15 Relation of Equalization to Support [Reserved]

III. CALCULATION OF THE EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT

A. THE VALUATION DATE

- § 8:16 Introduction
- § 8:17 Permanent Separation
- § 8:18 Divorce and Nullity
- § 8:19 Death
- § 8:20 Where No Powers of Appointment/Control Exist in Either Spouse [Reserved]

B. PROPERTY

1. Shareable Interests

- § 8:21 Introduction
- § 8:22 Resulting Trusts
- § 8:23 Constructive Trusts

2. What Assets or "Things" Should Not be Classed as Property

- § 8:24 Introduction
- § 8:25 Debts
- § 8:26 Jobs
- § 8:27 Professional Degrees and Licences to Practise
- § 8:28 Financial Arrangements with Aging Parents
- § 8:29 Disability Benefits [Reserved]
- § 8:30 Severance pay [Reserved]
- § 8:31 Bank Account Held in Trust for Child [Reserved]
- § 8:32 Assets Held in Trust [Reserved]
- § 8:33 Property Held in Trust for Another [Reserved]
- § 8:34 Grant Money [Reserved]
- § 8:35 Property Acquired After Separation [Reserved]
- § 8:36 Property Outside Jurisdiction [Reserved]
- § 8:37 Children's RESPs [Reserved]
- § 8:38 Rental Income from Matrimonial Home [Reserved]
- § 8:39 Bonuses [Reserved]
- § 8:40 Generally [Reserved]
- § 8:41 At Risk Performance Pay (Discretionary) [Reserved]
- § 8:42 Stock Options [Reserved]
- § 8:43 Structured Settlements/Annuities [Reserved]

3. What "Things" Should be Classed as Property

- § 8:44 Businesses and Professional Practices
- § 8:45 Pensions

| § 8:46 | Double Dipping/Double Accounting for Pension Benefits | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| § 8:47 | Retirement Benefits, Sick Leave and Employment/Termination Benefits | | | |
| § 8:48 | RRSPs | | | |
| § 8:49 | Income Streams/Trusts | | | |
| § 8:50 | Employee Savings Accounts | | | |
| | | | | |
| § 8:51 | Rights of Action and Damage Awards | | | |
| § 8:52 | Inheritance Rights | | | |
| § 8:53 | Miscellaneous Power on Control Over Preparty (Pageryal) | | | |
| 8 8:55 8 8:55 | Power or Control Over Property [Reserved] Contractual Rights [Reserved] | | | |
| § 8.56 | Beneficial Interests [Reserved] | | | |
| § 8:57 | Options to Purchase [Reserved] | | | |
| § 8:58 | Bank accounts and investment accounts [Reserved] | | | |
| \$ 8:54 \$ 8:55 \$ 8:56 \$ 8:57 \$ 8:58 \$ 8:59 | Powers of Appointment/Control [Reserved] | | | |
| C. | VALUATION | | | |
| § 8:60 | Introduction | | | |
| § 8:61 | Generally | | | |
| § 8:62 | Onus of Proof | | | |
| § 8:63 | Interim Disbursements | | | |
| § 8:64 | Notional Tax and Disposition Costs | | | |
| § 8:65 | Pensions | | | |
| § 8:66 | Small Business and Professional Practices | | | |
| § 8:67 | After Acquired Knowledge | | | |
| § 8:68 | Stock Options [Reserved] | | | |
| § 8:69 | Debts [Reserved] | | | |
| \$ 8:68 \$ 8:69 \$ 8:70 \$ 8:71 | Trusts [Reserved] Stock Options [Reserved] | | | |
| ъ D. | - | | | |
| Δ. | 1. Introduction; Onus of Proof | | | |
| | • | | | |
| § 8:72 | Introduction | | | |
| § 8:73 | Onus of Proof | | | |
| | 2. Excluded Property: the Classes of Section 4(2) | | | |
| § 8:74 | Introduction | | | |
| § 8:75 | Gifts or Inheritances from Third Parties | | | |
| § 8:76 | Income from Gifts or Inheritances Acquired after Marriage if | | | |
| | the Donor/Testator Expressly Stated that it is to be Excluded | | | |
| | in Calculating the Recipient Spouse's NFP | | | |
| § 8:77 | Damages | | | |
| § 8:78 | Proceeds or a Right to Proceeds of a Life Insurance Policy, as | | | |
| | Defined in the Insurance Act, that are Payable on Death of | | | |
| | the Life Insured | | | |
| § 8:79 | Traced Property | | | |
| § 8:80 | Property Excluded Under a Domestic Contract | | | |
| T. | DEDITORIONE IN CALCUI AMINO COOLICAL NEG | | | |

E. DEDUCTIONS IN CALCULATING SPOUSAL NET FAMILY PROPERTY

§ 8:81 Introduction

| | Matrimonial Property Law in Canada |
|--|---|
| \$ 8:82 \$ 8:83 \$ 8:84 \$ 8:85 | Onus of Proof Debts and Liabilities Notional Tax and Disposition Costs Net Value on the Date of Marriage of Property Brought Into Marriage |
| F. | CALCULATION OF DIFFERENCE IN SPOUSAL NET FAMILY PROPERTIES; DETERMINING THE "EQUALIZATION OBLIGATION": REAPPORTIONING THE DIFFERENCE |
| § 8:86 § 8:87 | Calculation of Difference in Spousal Net Family Properties Determining the Equalization Obligation: Reapportioning the Difference |
| G. | UNEQUAL DIVISION: REAPPORTIONMENT OF THE EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT |
| | 1. Generally; Sections 5(6)(a) to 5(6)(g) |
| § 8:88 | Generally |
| § 8:89 | Section $5(6)(a)$: A Spouse's Failure to Disclose Debts or Liabilities Existing on the Date of Marriage |
| § 8:90 | Section 5(6)(b): The Fact that Debts or Liabilities Claimed in Reduction of a Spouse's NFP Were Incurred Recklessly or in Bad Faith |
| § 8:91 | Section $5(6)(c)$: Part of a Spouse's NFP that Consists of Gifts Made by the Other Spouse |
| § 8:92 | Section $5(6)(d)$: A Spouse's Intentional or Reckless Depletion of His or her Net Family Property |
| § 8:93 | Section 5(6)(e): Equalization Would be Disproportionately Large Given the Short Duration of the Marriage |
| § 8:94 | Section 5(6)(f): One Spouse Incurring Disproportionate Debts or Liabilities for Family Purposes |
| § 8:95 | Section 5(6)(g): A Written Agreement Between the Spouses that is Not a Domestic Contract |
| | 2. Section 5(6)(h): Any Other Circumstances Relating to the Acquisition, Disposition, Preservation, Maintenance, or Improvement of Property |
| § 8:96 § 8:97 | Introduction General [Reserved] |

| § 8:96 | Introduction | | | |
|---------|--|--|--|--|
| § 8:97 | General [Reserved] | | | |
| § 8:98 | Need for Future Economic Independence | | | |
| § 8:99 | Post-Separation Changes in Value | | | |
| § 8:100 | Disparity in Contributions | | | |
| § 8:101 | Conduct | | | |
| § 8:102 | Post-Separation Changes in Value [Reserved] | | | |
| § 8:103 | Post-Separation Factors Generally | | | |
| § 8:104 | Need for Future Economic Independence [Reserved] | | | |
| § 8:105 | Domestic Contract [Reserved] | | | |
| | 3. Summary | | | |
| | | | | |

§ 8:106 Generally

Effect of Bankruptcy § 8:107

IV. REALIZING THE EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT

- § 8:108 Introduction
- § 8:109 Money Judgment
- § 8:110 Security
- § 8:111 Deferred/Instalment Payments—Generally
- § 8:112 —Section 11
- § 8:113 -Conditions
- § 8:114 Property Orders: If-and-When Division
- § 8:115 Sale of Property
- § 8:116 Transfer or Vesting of Property in Other Spouse [Reserved]
- § 8:117 Enforcement
- Interest on Judgment [Reserved] § 8:118
- § 8:119 Variation of Realization Order
- Interim Orders [Reserved] § 8:120
- Transfer of Property [Reserved] § 8:121
- No Equalization Order or Waiver [Reserved] § 8:122

V. OWNERSHIP DETERMINATIONS

- § 8:123 Section 10
- Constructive and Resulting Trusts § 8:124
- § 8:125 Preservation Orders
- § 8:126 Variation of Security
- § 8:127 Presumptions of Resulting Trust and Joint Ownership
- § 8:128 —Conflict of laws
- § 8:129 Piercing the Corporate Veil [Reserved]
- Common Law Relationships—Joint Family Venture [Reserved] § 8:130
- § 8:131
- Common Law Relationships—Jurisdiction [Reserved]
 Common Law Relationships—Resulting and Constructive § 8:132 Trusts [Reserved]
- Severance of Joint Tenancy [Reserved] § 8:133
- § 8:134 Bankruptcy Situations [Reserved]

PARTITION AND SALE VI.

- § 8:135 Generally
- § 8:136 Pre-Trial Sale of Co-owned Matrimonial Property
- § 8:137 Right to Sale
- Defences to Pre-trial Sale § 8:138
- § 8:139 Possession
- § 8:140 **Preservation Order**
- § 8:141 No Rights Over Asset (Trust Law)
- —Right to Transfer/Purchase of Other's Interest in Final § 8:142 **Property Resolution**
- § 8:143 Sale Upon Final Resolution of Dispute—Section 9 of the Family Law Act
- § 8:144 Partition Act
- § 8:145 Appeals

VII. TRANSITION PROVISIONS: PART I APPLICATION

| 8 | 8:146 | Generally |
|-----|-------|-------------|
| - 3 | 0.110 | ochter an y |

VIII. FAMILY LAW ACT PART II: THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

| Α | INTRODUCTION: | JURIDICTION TO | MAKE ORDER |
|---|---------------|----------------|------------|

| § 8:147 | Introduction |
|---------|--------------|

§ 8:148 Jurisdiction to Make Order [Reserved]

B. THE MATRIMONIAL HOME DEFINED

| 8 | Q.1 | 149 | Introduction |
|---|-----|-----|--------------|
| O | Ο. | 149 | Introduction |

- § 8:150 Property
- § 8:151 In Which a Spouse Has an Interest
- § 8:152 Ordinarily Occupied as Family Residence
- § 8:153 Time of Residence User
- § 8:154 More Than One Matrimonial Home
- § 8:155 Multiple User
- § 8:156 Designation of Matrimonial Home

C. THE SPECIAL PART II RIGHTS OVER THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

1. Possession

- § 8:157 Possession of the Home
- § 8:158 Possession of Contents of Home [Reserved]
- § 8:159 Exclusive Possession

2. Occupation Rent; Ancillary Possession Orders

- § 8:160 Occupation Rent
- § 8:161 Ancillary Possession Orders

3. Exclusive Possession Orders: The Criteria

- § 8:162 Generally
- § 8:163 Best Interests of the Children
- § 8:164 Effect of Property and Support Orders
- § 8:165 The Financial Position of Both Spouses
- § 8:166 Suitable Alternative Accommodation
- § 8:167 Violence
- § 8:168 Agreements Between Parties [Reserved]

4. Variation of Possession Orders

§ 8:169 Generally

5. Disposition or Encumbrance of the Matrimonial Home

- § 8:170 Introduction
- § 8:171 Release of Part II Rights

lxxxvi

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| CONTENTS |
|---|
| Court Order Designation by Both Spouses Effect of Non-Compliance Dispensing with Spousal Consent Setting Aside Offending Transactions Severance of Joint Tenancy [Reserved] Costs of Preparing and Staging Home for Sale [Reserved] Jurisdiction [Reserved] |
| 6. Other Matters |
| Spousal Rights vs. Rights of Third Parties [Reserved] Severing Joint Tenancy of Spouses [Reserved] Right to Redemption and Notice Rights of Third Party Creditors [Reserved] Severance of Joint Tenancy [Reserved] Reimbursement of Other Spouse [Reserved] Fraudulent Conveyances under the Fraudulent Conveyances Act [Reserved] |
| OMESTIC CONTRACTS |
| GENERALLY; JURISDICTION |
| Generally Jurisdiction [Reserved] |
| VALIDITY OF CONTRACT |
| Introduction [Reserved] Formal Validity Essential Validity Compulsion Non-Disclosure Lack of Understanding Independent Legal Advice Parties Not "Ad Idem" [Reserved] Mistake [Reserved] Transfers at Undervalue Within Five Years of Bankruptcy [Reserved] Misrepresentation [Reserved] Rectification [Reserved] |
| OTHER MATTERS |
| Interpretation Effect of Reconciliation Foreign and Pre-FLA Contracts Enforcement [Reserved] Enforcement—Failure to Meet Objectives of Divorce Act [Reserved] Drafts and Settlement Proposals [Reserved] Settlements by Counsel [Reserved] Arbitration Agreements [Reserved] Variation [Reserved] Parties' Conduct Inconsistent with Intention to Separate [Reserved] |
| |

X. MEDIATION/ARBITRATION AGREEMENTS; PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE; ARBITRATION AWARDS

- § 8:211 Mediation/Arbitration Agreements [Reserved]
- § 8:212 Practice and Procedure—Commencing and Processing Equalization and Ownership Proceedings
- § 8:213 Arbitration Awards—Generally [Reserved]

XI. COSTS

- § 8:214 Introduction
- § 8:215 Interim Disbursements
- § 8:216 Interest: Pre- and Post-Judgment
- § 8:217 Security for Costs [Reserved]

CHAPTER 9-S. PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND

I. INTRODUCTION [RESERVED]

§ 9-S:1 Generally [Reserved]

II. THE APPLICATION OF PART I [RESERVED]

- § 9-S:2 Introduction [Reserved]
- § 9-S:3 Who May Apply for Equalization of Net Family Property? [Reserved]
- § 9-S:4 Spouse Defined [Reserved]
- § 9-S:5 Marriage Breakdown: The Triggering Events [Reserved]
- § 9-S:6 Extending the Limitation Period to Commence Proceedings [Reserved]
- § 9-S:7 Transitional Provisions [Reserved]

III. THE VALUATION DATE

- § 9-S:8 Generally [Reserved]
- § 9-S:9 Deductions
- § 9-S:10 Property Excluded by Contract

IV. WHAT CONSTITUTES PROPERTY

- § 9-S:11 Shareable Interests [Reserved]
- § 9-S:12 "Net Family Property" [Reserved]
- § 9-S:13 Pensions: Division and Valuation

V. DEDUCTIONS FROM NET FAMILY PROPERTY

- § 9-S:14 What May be Deducted [Reserved]
- § 9-S:15 Onus of Proof [Reserved]
- § 9-S:16 Debts and Liabilities on Valuation Date
- § 9-S:17 Net Value on Date of Marriage of Property Brought into Marriage
- § 9-S:18 Property Acquired After Marriage and Owned on Valuation Date—Gifts and Inheritances From Third Parties
- § 9-S:19 Property Acquired After Marriage and Owned on Valuation Date— Damages for Personal Injury or a Settlement Therefore [Reserved]

| § 9-S:20 | Property Acquired After Marriage and Owned on Valuation Date— |
|-----------|---|
| 300.20 | Proceeds or Right to Proceeds of Life, Accident or Sickness |
| | |
| | Insurance Reserved |
| 0 0 0 0 1 | m 1 m 1 m 1 m 1 1 |

Traced Property [Reserved]

§ 9-S:21 § 9-S:22 Property Spouses Agree by Domestic Contract to Exclude [Reserved]

CALCULATION OF DIFFERENCE IN SPOUSAL NET FAMILY PROPERTY [RESERVED]

Generally [Reserved] § 9-S:23

UNEQUAL DIVISION: REAPPORTIONMENT OF THE VII. EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT

| 2 | 9-S:24 | Generally |
|---|--------|-----------|
| 8 | 9-0.24 | Generany |

- A Spouse's Failure to Disclose Debts or Liabilities Existing on the § 9-S:25 Date of Marriage [Reserved]
- Debts or Liabilities Incurred Recklessly or in Bad Faith [Reserved] § 9-S:26
- § 9-S:27 Part of Spouse's NFP Consists of Gifts Made by Other Spouse [Reserved]
- § 9-S:28 Spouse's Reckless Depletion of His or Her Net Family Property [Reserved]
- § 9-S:29 Equalization Would be Disproportionately Large Given Short Duration of Marriage [Reserved]
- One Spouse Incurs Disproportionate Debts or Liabilities for Family § 9-S:30 Purposes [Reserved]
- A Written Agreement between the Spouses that Is Not a Domestic § 9-S:31 Contract [Reserved]
- Any Other Circumstances Related to Acquisition, Disposition, § 9-S:32 Preservation, Maintenance, Improvement, Deterioration, Destruction, Division or Transfer of Property [Reserved]

VIII. TRANSFERS BY A SPOUSE TO DEFEAT CLAIMS: EFFECT OF BANKRUPTCY; REALIZING THE **EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT: OWNERSHIP/** POSSESSION DETERMINATION

- Transfers by a Spouse to Defeat Claims [Reserved] § 9-S:33
- § 9-S:34 Effect of Bankruptcy
- Realizing the Equalization Entitlement [Reserved] § 9-S:35
- § 9-S:36 Ownership/Possession Determination [Reserved]

IX. THE FAMILY HOME [RESERVED]

- § 9-S:37 Introduction [Reserved]
- § 9-S:38 What Constitutes the Family Home?—"Property" [Reserved]
- What Constitutes the Family Home?—"Interest" [Reserved] § 9-S:39
- § 9-S:40 What Constitutes the Family Home?—Ownership of Shares [Reserved]
- § 9-S:41 What Constitutes the Family Home?—"Ordinarily Occupied" [Reserved]
- § 9-S:42 Possession of the Family Home Generally [Reserved]
- § 9-S:43 Exclusive Possession of the Family Home—Application of Section [Reserved]
- Exclusive Possession of the Family Home—Criteria for Awarding § 9-S:44 Exclusive Possession [Reserved]

§ 9-S:45 Occupation Rent [Reserved]

X. DOMESTIC CONTRACTS

§ 9-S:46 Introduction

§ 9-S:47 Validity

§ 9-S:48 Interpretation

XI. COSTS

§ 9-S:49 Generally

CHAPTER 9. PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND

I. INTRODUCTION

§ 9:1 Generally

II. THE APPLICATION OF PART I

- § 9:2 Introduction
- § 9:3 Who May Apply for Equalization of Net Family Property?
- § 9:4 Spouse Defined
- § 9:5 Marriage Breakdown: The Triggering Events
- § 9:6 Extending the Limitation Period to Commence Proceedings
- § 9:7 Transitional Provisions

III. THE VALUATION DATE

- § 9:8 Generally
- § 9:9 Deductions
- § 9:10 Property Excluded by Contract

IV. WHAT CONSTITUTES PROPERTY

- § 9:11 Shareable Interests
- § 9:12 "Net Family Property"
- § 9:13 Pensions: Division and Valuation [Reserved]

V. DEDUCTIONS FROM NET FAMILY PROPERTY

- § 9:14 What May be Deducted
- § 9:15 Onus of Proof
- § 9:16 Debts and Liabilities at Valuation Date
- § 9:17 Net Value on Date of Marriage of Property Brought into Marriage
- § 9:18 Property Acquired After Marriage and Owned on Valuation Date—Gifts and Inheritances From Third Persons
- § 9:19 —Damages for Personal Injury or a Settlement Therefore
- § 9:20 —Proceeds or Right to Proceeds of Life, Accident or Sickness Insurance
- § 9:21 Traced Property

§ 9:22 Property Spouses Agree by Domestic Contract to Exclude

VI. CALCULATION OF DIFFERENCE IN SPOUSAL NET FAMILY PROPERTY

§ 9:23 Generally

VII. UNEQUAL DIVISION: REAPPORTIONMENT OF THE EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT

- § 9:24 Generally
- § 9:25 A Spouse's Failure to Disclose Debts or Liabilities Existing on the Date of Marriage
- § 9:26 Debts or Liabilities Incurred Recklessly or in Bad Faith
- § 9:27 Part of Spouse's NFP Consists of Gifts Made by Other Spouse
- § 9:28 Spouse's Reckless Depletion of His or Her Net Family Property
- § 9:29 Equalization Would be Disproportionately Large Given Short Duration of Marriage
- § 9:30 One Spouse Incurs Disproportionate Debts or Liabilities for Family Purposes
- § 9:31 A Written Agreement between the Spouses that Is Not a Domestic Contract
- § 9:32 Any Other Circumstances Related to Acquisition, Disposition, Preservation, Maintenance, Improvement, Deterioration, Destruction, Division or Transfer of Property

VIII. TRANSFERS BY A SPOUSE TO DEFEAT CLAIMS; EFFECT OF BANKRUPTCY; REALIZING THE EQUALIZATION ENTITLEMENT; OWNERSHIP/ POSSESSION DETERMINATION

- § 9:33 Transfers by a Spouse to Defeat Claims
- § 9:34 Effect of Bankruptcy [Reserved]
- § 9:35 Realizing the Equalization Entitlement
- § 9:36 Ownership/Possession Determination

IX. THE FAMILY HOME

- § 9:37 Introduction
- § 9:38 What Constitutes the Family Home?—"Property"
- § 9:39 —"Interest"
- § 9:40 —Ownership of Shares
- § 9:41 —"Ordinarily Occupied"
- § 9:42 Possession of the Family Home Generally
- § 9:43 Exclusive Possession of the Family Home—Application of Section
- § 9:44 —Criteria for Awarding Exclusive Possession
- § 9:45 Occupation Rent

X. DOMESTIC CONTRACTS [RESERVED]

- § 9:46 Introduction [Reserved]
- © 2022 Thomson Reuters, Rel. 4, 9/2022

- § 9:47 Validity [Reserved]
- § 9:48 Interpretation [Reserved]

XI. COSTS [RESERVED]

§ 9:49 Generally [Reserved]

CHAPTER 10. QUEBEC

I. HISTORY

§ 10:1 Generally

II. THE PLAN OF THIS PRESENTATION

- § 10:2 Introduction
- § 10:3 Prior to Marriage: Freedom of Choice Subject to Public Order
- § 10:4 —Rights and Duties of Spouses
- § 10:5 —Family Residence
- § 10:6 —Family Patrimony
- § 10:7 —Compensatory Allowance
- § 10:8 During the Marriage: Independent Administration and Disposal of Property
- § 10:9 —Separation of Property
- § 10:10 —Partnership of Acquests
- § 10:11 At the End of the Marriage: Family Patrimony as Public Order
- § 10:12 —The Family Patrimony
- § 10:13 —Contents of the Family Patrimony
- § 10:14 —Deductions
- § 10:15 —Compensatory Allowance
- § 10:16 —Unequal Division

III. INSURANCE; GIFTS; CONCLUSION

- § 10:17 Insurance
- § 10:18 Gifts
- § 10:19 Conclusion

Appendix 10A. Annex I

CHAPTER 11-S. SASKATCHEWAN

I. HISTORICAL OVERVIEW

- § 11-S:1 Historical Development to 1975—Reception of English Law [Reserved]
- § 11-S:2 Historical Development to 1975—Legislation to 1975 [Reserved]
- § 11-S:3 Historical Development to 1975—Case Law to May 1, 1975 [Reserved]
- § 11-S:4 Reform: 1975 to 1980, s. 22 of the Married Persons' Property Act— The Amendments of 1975: Origins and Approach of the Legislation [Reserved]

§ 11-S:6 The Family Property Act

II. PRELIMINARY MATTERS

- § 11-S:7 Definition of Spouse
- § 11-S:8 When a Spouse May Apply
- § 11-S:9 Where You Apply
- § 11-S:10 The Application is a Summary Application [Reserved]

III. VALUATION OF ASSETS

- § 11-S:11 Date of Valuation
- § 11-S:12 Valuation of Assets in General
- § 11-S:13 Valuation of Business Assets
- § 11-S:14 Valuation of Pension Assets

IV. DEFINITION OF MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY AND EXEMPT PROPERTY

- § 11-S:15 Definition of Matrimonial Property
- § 11-S:16 Exempt Property

V. THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

- § 11-S:17 Definition of Matrimonial Home
- § 11-S:18 Orders for Exclusive Possession
- § 11-S:19 Orders under Section 22 of the Act
- § 11-S:20 Occupation Rent

VI. MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY OTHER THAN THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

- § 11-S:21 Introduction [Reserved]
- § 11-S:22 Where Equal Distribution Would be Unfair—The Section 21 Factors
- § 11-S:23 Types of Orders

VII. OTHER MATTERS COVERED BY THE ACT

- § 11-S:24 Application of the Act Upon Death
- § 11-S:25 Spousal Contracts
- § 11-S:26 Dissipation, Transfer or Gift
- § 11-S:27 The Position of Creditors and Third Parties Under the Act
- § 11-S:28 Costs
- § 11-S:29 Applications to Vary
- § 11-S:30 Income Tax Considerations
- § 11-S:31 Interest: Pre-and Post-judgment
- § 11-S:32 Interim Orders

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS ISSUES

- § 11-S:33 Procedure
- © 2022 Thomson Reuters, Rel. 4, 9/2022

| § 11-S:34 | Enforcement of Order |
|-----------|---|
| § 11-S:35 | Application of Homestead Legislation |
| § 11-S:36 | Interim Distribution of Family Property |
| § 11-S:37 | Bankruptcy Issues |

IX. CONCLUSION [RESERVED]

§ 11-S:38 Concluding Remarks [Reserved]

CHAPTER 11. SASKATCHEWAN

I. HISTORICAL OVERVIEW

- § 11:1 Historical Development to 1975—Reception of English Law
- § 11:2 —Legislation to 1975
- § 11:3 —Case Law to May 1, 1975
- § 11:4 Reform: 1975 to 1980, s. 22 of the *Married Persons' Property Act*—The Amendments of 1975: Origins and Approach of the Legislation
- § 11:5 The Matrimonial Property Act
- § 11:6 The Family Property Act

II. PRELIMINARY MATTERS

- § 11:7 Definition of Spouse
- § 11:8 When a Spouse May Apply
- § 11:9 Where You Apply
- § 11:10 The Application is a Summary Application

III. VALUATION OF ASSETS

- § 11:11 Date of Valuation
- § 11:12 Valuation of Assets in General
- § 11:13 Valuation of Business Assets
- § 11:14 Valuation of Pension Assets

IV. DEFINITION OF FAMILY PROPERTY AND EXEMPT PROPERTY

- § 11:15 Definition of Family Property
- § 11:16 Exempt Property

V. THE FAMILY HOME

- § 11:17 Definition of Family Home
- § 11:18 Orders for Exclusive Possession
- § 11:19 Orders Under Section 22 of the Act
- § 11:20 Occupation Rent [Reserved]

VI. MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY OTHER THAN THE MATRIMONIAL HOME

§ 11:21 Introduction

| § 11:22 | Where Equal Distribution Would Be Unfair—The Section 23 |
|----------|---|
| | Factors |
| \$ 11.00 | Types of Ondone |

§ 11:23 Types of Orders

VII. OTHER MATTERS COVERED BY THE ACT

- § 11:24 Application of the Act Upon Death
- § 11:25 Spousal Contracts
- § 11:26 Dissipation, Transfer or Gift
- § 11:27 The Position of Creditors and Third Parties Under the Act
- § 11:28 Costs
- § 11:29 Applications to Vary
- § 11:30 Income Tax Considerations
- § 11:31 Interest: Pre- and Post-judgment [Reserved]
- § 11:32 Interim Orders [Reserved]

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS ISSUES [RESERVED]

- § 11:33 Procedure [Reserved]
- § 11:34 Enforcement of Order [Reserved]
- § 11:35 Application of Homestead Legislation [Reserved]
- § 11:36 Interim Distribution of Family Property [Reserved]
- § 11:37 Bankruptcy Issues [Reserved]

IX. CONCLUSION

§ 11:38 Concluding Remarks

Volume 4

APPENDICES

Appendix A. Valuation Principles of Family Law

Appendix B. Tax Principles of Family Law

Appendix C. Matrimonial Property Division Quantums

Volume 5

Appendix D. Proof of Facts

Appendix E. Forms and Precedents

Appendix F. International Materials

Appendix G. Selected Readings

Appendix H. Appendix of Statutes

Appendix H1. Alberta Family Property Act

Appendix H2. Family Property Act Family Property Regulation Alberta Regulation 13/99

Appendix H3. Alberta Forms

Appendix H4. British Columbia Family Relations Act

MATRIMONIAL PROPERTY LAW IN CANADA

| Appendix H5. | British Columbia Division of Pensions Regulation | | |
|----------------------|--|--|--|
| Appendix H6. | British Columbia Family Law Act (Excerpts) | | |
| Appendix H7. | Manitoba Family Property Act | | |
| Appendix H8. | New Brunswick Marital Property Act | | |
| Appendix H9. | Newfoundland and Labrador Family Law Act | | |
| Appendix H10. | Nova Scotia Matrimonial Property Act | | |
| Appendix H11. | Ontario Family Law Act | | |
| Appendix H12. | Ontario Designation of Matrimonial Home—Forms | | |
| Appendix H13. | Prince Edward Island Family Law Act | | |
| Appendix H14. | Civil Code of Quebec (Excerpts) | | |
| Appendix H15. | Saskatchewan Family Property Act | | |
| Appendix SLL. | Selected Legal Literature | | |
| Appendix TC. | Table of Concordance | | |
| Appendix WP. | Words & Phrases | | |
| Table of Added Cases | | | |

Table of Cases

Index